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Company Profile
NSV

Digital China Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Digital China”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is a leading IT product
distributor and IT service provider in China. Leveraging upon close relationships with many international branded IT manufacturers, the
Group positions itself at the forefront of the IT market by providing valued-added services, innovative IT solutions and cutting-edge products
in the China market. Up to March 2007, the Group’s nationwide network extends to 17 platforms and over 30 representative offices
covering second- and third-tier cities throughout China.

The Group’s business is divided into three categories:

Distribution of products that provide seamless match to the needs of consumers and small to medium corporate clients. Products distributed
comprise computers (laptop & desktop), printers, PC servers, data projectors, peripherals, consumer electronic products and others.

Distribution of IT products and solutions to be employed in the set-up of corporate IT infrastructure. The business is divided into 4 sub-
categories comprising Unix servers, networking products, storage products and packaged software.

Through years of efforts, our [T service capabilities has been extended to IT architectural consultation & planning, application development,
application integration & deployment and operation outsourcing. Our industry expertise has been expanded to almost all major industries,
including the telecommunications, finance, government, public and manufacturing sectors.

Being a former subsidiary of Legend Group Limited (now known as Lenovo Group Limited), Digital China Holdings Limited was listed in the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 0861) on 1 June 2001 and is now an associate of China-based Legend Holdings
Limited.
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Financial Highlights
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FY2006/2007 FY2005/2006 FY2004/2005 FY2003/2004 FY2002/2003
TTTn/ontE —EERRH/SEEN TR/ -RRR 2T/ -FER R/ FTF=
HKSm EWEET  HKOm B EET  HROm I BREET  HKSm BB ESET  HKSmB¥EET
For the Year REER
Revenue A 25,418 19,865 15,457 14,277 12,511
Profit from e Em 415 375 222* 61* 226
Operating Activities
Net profit from Ordinary ~ AXEEfE(H B % 208 252 186* 20* 179
Activities Attributable E v
to Shareholders bk}
Earnings per Share BREF 23.92 29.19 21.64* 2.38* 20.85
(HK cents) (AL
Dividends per Share GRS 8.28 10.00 8.53 — 7.38
(HK cents) (B
At Year-end REEXR
Total Assets wEE 6,885 5,827 4,887 4,038 3,920
Shareholders' Funds RRES 1,961 1,787 1,579 1,365 1,393
Financial Ratio M5t
Return on Equity (%) [RERE & BIR=E 10.63 14.10 11.80* 1.49* 12.85
(Bath)
Interest Cover (times) FEBELLR () 2.83 3.91 4.59* 1.30* 6.40
Current Ratio (times) MENLE (5) 1.44 1.25 1.40 1.68 1.60
Total Interest Bearing ESN Rt 0.63 0.68 0.68 0.74 0.55
Debts to Shareholders' X &S
Funds Ratio (times) b= (1)

* figures restated #(F T LA &3
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Significant Events
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At the forefront
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As a market leader, we are dedicated to business innovation and continuous
improvement of the sophistication level and coverage of our business. Building upon
our foundations in the domestic market, we will achieve our next target for profit
growth by identifying growth opportunities and striving to enhance brand visibility.
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Significant Events

AE[REE

2000

Digital China Innovation Showroom, an establishment that integrated the
strengths of the suppliers and the Company, was officially unveiled at our
Beijing headquarters. With numerous products and successful projects of
Digital China in display, it served as an important showcase gallery of the
Group for brand name promotion.

Beijing Si-Tech Information Technology Co., Ltd was officially established and
due integration processes were completed smoothly. The joint venture was
set to enhance the Group’s ability in providing customized solutions for the
telecommunications sector.

A Management Trainee Program was launched in collaboration with renowned
PRC universities to identify potential candidates for employment among final
year students through career seminars, interviews and internships.

Digital China (Hefei) Company Limited was established on 8 June 2006 as the
15th business platform of the Group.

On 10 June 2006, a ceremony was held to present a donation of RMB250,000
for the building of the fifth Digital China Hope School. The staff of Digital China
are fully committed to rewarding the community by initiating or engaging in
social welfare activities, underlining an integral element of Digital China’s
corporate culture.
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Significant Events

REEEE

Annual Innovation Meeting was convened during 16 - 18 August 2006 at the
Digital China headquarters in Shangdi Digital Technology Plaza, Beijing to
investigate the latest IT technologies and solutions. Renowned members of
domestic and overseas enterprises and research institutes were invited to
deliver keynote speeches to about 1,500 participants comprising senior
government officers and industry leaders.

The first “Engineers’ Day” of Digital China was held on 17 August 2006 as part
of the Group’s initiative to show its appreciation and concern for technical
staff.

With a view to enhancing the Group’s development in Fujian, our Fuzhou Office
was upgraded to platform status on 29 November 2006 and Fuzhou Digital
China Company Limited was officially established.

The third “2006 Summit of Digital China Value-added Services Senior Partners”
on the Theme of “Innovating Your World - 20086,” organized by our Systems
Business Department, was successfully held during 14 - 16 November 2006.

Following the earlier success of the “Sales and Marketing Day”, Digital China
launched its first “Supporting Staff Day” on 1 December 2006 to show its
appreciation and concern for logistics staff as part of a corporate culture building
effort underpinned by the management philosophy of “One Company, One
Dream”.

The first “2006 Summit of Digital China Channel Partners” on the Theme of

“Power of Flying”, organized by our Distribution Business Department, was
successfully held during 5-7 December 2006.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07
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2007

Changsha Digital China Company Limited was established on 15 January
2007 as the 17th business platform of the Group.

On 10 February 2007, Digital China was voted one of the Best 20 Employers
in 2006 out of nearly 1,000 enterprises in a poll by CCTV, confirming its status
as one of the most respected enterprises in the industry.

On 15 March 2007, Digital China Xi’an Software R&D Centre attained CMMI
Level 4 (Quantitative Managed Level) certification.

Significant Events
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Significant Events
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Industry Awards and Honours Received by DC

National Informatization Evaluation Center
25th ranking among Top 500 Enterprises in PRC Informatization

National Informatization Evaluation Center
Best Informatization Strategy Award

National Informatization Evaluation Center
Best OA Application

The 10th International Software Expo of the PRC 2006
Most Valuable Software Developer

The 10th International Software Expo of the PRC 2006
Best Value-added Software Product (Application Software)

Best 100 PRC Telecom Suppliers 2006 Survey organized by Internet Weekly
Top 100 PRC Telecom Suppliers 2006

Computer Partner World
Top 200 Distributors in Top 500 PRC Computer Companies 2006

Computer Partner World
Top 100 Solutions Provider in Top 500 PRC Computer Companies 2006

China Information Weekly
1st ranking among Top 100 PRC IT Channel Distributors 2006

China Electronic Chamber of Commerce
Most Promising Brand Name in PRC e-Companies July 2006 — July 2007

Department of Planning and Statistics under the State Administration of Taxation and
the Chinese Taxation Magazine Press
China’s Top 100 Taxpayers from 35 Industries 2005

Sponsor: Department of Electronic Information Product Management under the Ministry of
Information Technology

Organizer: China Association of the Software Industry

Top 10 Innovative PRC Software Developers 2006 of the PRC Software Industry

Channels Committee of China Information Industry Trade Association, Smart Partner
Top 10 Solution Providers of Excellence 2005-2006

Channels Committee of China Information Industry Trade Association, Smart Partner
Top 10 Distributors of Excellence 2005-2006

Beijing Municipal Administration of Industry and Commerce
“Trustworthy Enterprise” of Beijing

Ministry of Science and Technology, Chinese Academy of Sciences and Beijing Municipal
Government
Top 100 Innovative Pilot Enterprises of Z-Park

Sponsors: Ministry of Information Industry, Ministry of Science and Technology, National
Development and Reform Commission and Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
Organizer: China Association of the Software Industry

Top 10 Innovative PRC Software Developers
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Segment Awards

Asus
Best Channel Partner

Symbol
Best Value-added Distributor - Asia Pacific

AMD
Progress Award

DOPOD
Special Contribution Award

Lingtu
Gold Value-added Distributor

IBM
Best Channel Development for System Technology Group Blue Twister

IBM
IBM Best Channel Development 2006

FORTINET
Best Distributor - Greater China

HP
HP Work Station Best Channel Contribution

Cisco

Champions and 1st runners-up in the Contest for Technology Experts of Cisco Asia Pacific
Partners 2006 (General Distributor Group Section)

Best Partner (Asia Pacific) and CE500 Product Promotion Award

FYO06 Best General Distributorship Award (China)

Polycom
Polycom: Top Sales - Asia Pacific
Polycom: Best Partner in China

International Laboratory for Brand Names in Security and Protection Products, China Public
Security Magazine, China Public Security Research Institute and CPS Net
Top 50 Enterprises in the PRC Industry of Security and Protection Products

HP
Best Partner for Sales of High-end Servers and Storage Products 2006

Symantec
Best Value-added Distributor for Symantec 05-06

Sybase
Best Value-added Distributor for Sybase 05-06

Microsoft
Microsoft Operations Excellence Award 2005 CHINA
Microsoft FYO6 Best Sales for Authorized Dealers

Significant Events
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Significant Events

AEOREE

Value-added network
=)
F5 Best Partner - Asia Pacific

Value-added software

Oracle

Oracle Best Distributor for Technology Products - Asia Pacific
Oracle Best Distributor - Greater China

BEA
Gold and Silver VAD Annual Awards
Gold Annual Award for Technology Solutions

Juniper
Best Distributor - China 2006

IBM

Best IBM Distributor 2006

Best Distributor (Sales Growth) for STG pSeries 2006
Best Contribution for Storage Products 2006

Best IBM Value-added Software Distributor 2006

Dostor.com
Best Channel Distributor for Storage Products - China in the “2006 Ranking for Storage
Products”

National Informatization Evaluation Center
Best IT Management Service Award

China Center for Information Industry Development
Professional Service Award (Financial Sector) 2006

China Center for Information Industry Development
Professional Service Award (Public Sector) 2006

China Center for Information Industry Development
Professional Service Award (Telecommunications Sector) 2006

China Center for Information Industry Development
Professional Service Award (Taxation) 2006

China Center for Information Industry Development
Professional Service Award (Manufacturing Sector) 2006

China Center for Information Industry Development
Customer Satisfaction Award for Switch Service 2006

China Center for Information Industry Development
Most Valuable PRC IT Service Provider 2006

China Center for Information Industry Development
Leaders of PRC IT Services 2006

Carnegie Mellon Software Engineering Institute
CMMI Level 4 (Quantitative Managed Level)

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07
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Significant Events

REEIRE

Awards Received by Employees

Guo Wei
Beijing Influence Survey Organizing Committee
Top 10 Entrepreneurs Impacting People’s Livelihood

Chen Yong

Central Committee of Communist Youth League, Ministry of Information Industry and
All-China Youth Federation

The Third Annual Award for Outstanding Young Practitioners of the PRC Software Industry

Zheng Xiaowei
National Informatization Evaluation Center
Outstanding CIO

Zheng Xiaowei
China CIO Development Institute
Top 500 Best Achievement CIO 2005
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWmE

Being at the forefront of the market, we understand the needs and
priorities ofiour customers. We provide IT services on demand and add
value to our customers with our solutions:

BMEEMSAR  BREFHE  BEFME  "HEMD"  AEFRMES
BEENBRETER -
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Li Qin ZF#)
Chairman &

The Group maintained stable turnover growth for the 2006/07 financial year
thanks to the relentless efforts of the Digital China team. Revenue grew 27.96%
year-on-year to HK$25,418 million. The Group's overall profitability was also
improved compared to the previous financial year as gross profit margin grew
1o 7.27%. Nevertheless, profit attributable to shareholders of the parent for
the financial year decreased slightly to HK$208 million as a result of market
investments and other exceptional items. The Group's overall performance in
operating cashflow and cash turnover was outstanding thanks to effective
internal risk management measures. In terms of market share, the Group has
completed full coverage of the China market from retail consumers to large
companies in major sectors by providing various IT services, and all business
units reported steady growth in market share in their respective segments.
According to the IDC report published in April 2007, Digital China was ranked
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

as the top IT product distributor and service provider in China. In particular,
we were the assured leader among local companies, in the government and
banking sectors for IT services. In terms of business expansion, Digital China
became the most valuable IT service provider in China as it opened up new
frontiers in its cooperation with vendors to provide a diverse range of products
and value-added services to customers in the fastest possible manner.

We have put in place effective mechanisms for decision-making, supervision
and staff incentive following persistent corporate governance efforts since 2001,
including a three-tier governance structure comprising shareholders, the Board
and the management as required by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. By
focusing on the process of endorsing business strategies and enhancing
supervision over their implementation, we have ensured legal compliance of
the Company's business operations, truthfulness of its financial statements
and transparency of its management process, as well as procured the timely
completion of various financial targets and key tasks. In terms of staff incentives,
the Board has worked with the management to formulate the KPI performance
appraisal indicators. In terms of management remuneration, we have stressed
that the level of remuneration should be performance-related, market
competitive, compatible with the progress of the Company's development
and it should be consulted and consented with the senior management.

As well as achieving its business and financial targets set at the beginning of
the year, Digital China has also successfully completed certain important tasks
in its operations during the financial year under review:

1)  Substantial growth in net software revenue was achieved for all major sectors

in the IT service business. With increased markets shares, we have closed
up gaps with our competitors and enhanced our market profile.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07
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2) There were solid enhancements in the Group's servicing capabilities as
the strategy of implementing fundamental changes in three service areas
gained further grounds. With the construction and commissioning of the
Xi‘an Base, our R&D capabilities for proprietary software were further
improved to lay a solid foundation for the future development of Digital
China.

3) Business growth plans were effectively implemented with the addition of
three new business platforms at Changsha, Fuzhou and Hefei during the
financial year under review and expanded the coverage of third- and fourth-
tier cities and large-scale corporate customers, resulting in larger market
coverage for Digital China and a solid base for further penetration in existing
regional markets.

4) Business partners' conferences held during the year were greeted with
enthusiastic participation from vendors, core channels and mainstay
media, resulting in increased market influence and brand name penetration
as well as reinforced domination of Digital China in the IT market of China.

Looking to the forthcoming year, the Group will continue to adopt a pro-active
approach to strive for continuous strong growth in shareholders' return. The
Group will gear up efforts in strategic management and resource management
to help business units achieve growth in business and capabilities. Internally,
we will seek to improve return on capital by enhancing fund management and
rationalizing fund allocation and control measures. Maintaining gross profit
margin growth in the distribution business segment will represent a major
challenge owing to limitations in technological innovation for IT products. In
terms of market expansion, IT services will remain our focus with increased
investments in application development and standardization of the software
products, as to strengthen the core competitive strengths of the Group's service
business.

We are confident that, on the back of sound corporate governance and the
concerted effort of the Digital China team, the Company will continue to
generate long-term value growth for shareholders and investors, as the
management continues to identify high-growth investment opportunities with
their acute and perceptive moves, while introducing innovative business models
to meet customers' demand. | would also like to take this opportunity to thank
our investors, patrons and staff for their unfailing support of Digital China.

Li Qin &%
Chairman /&

Hong Kong, 12 July 2007
& —ZETLE+HA+ZH

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion
and Analysis
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Long-term

Objectives
RiZER
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Our ceaseless pursuit of business innovation results in the development
of competitive and quality software products. We seek to maximise return
for shareholders through ongoing optimisation of business processes and
effective implementation of risk management.
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During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group basically achieved the
businesses and management targets set for this financial year. Its
principal business grew and its overall profit remained stable. Moreover,
the Group’s operating cash flow, cash cycle and other aspects also
achieved good performance. The Group basically realized a balanced
development between business growth and risk control, thereby laying
a solid foundation for the Group’s development in the second five-year
period after its listing.

The growth of the Group’s turnover in this financial year surpassed that
of the overall domestic market, which reinforced its market position.
According to an analysis report provided by IDC in May 2007, the annual
growth rate of PRC IT market for 2006 was 15.7%. The Group recorded a
turnover of HK$25,418 million for the year ended 31 March 2007, representing
an increase of 27.96% comparing to HK$19,865 million of last financial year.
In order to better implement the Group’s business directive of catering to the
transformation of IT services, the Group continued to cooperate with suppliers,
actively explore new cooperation opportunities, strengthen channel
development and deepen the cooperation with channels for the Distribution
business and Systems business. The Group made intensive endeavor to focus
on the finance, telecommunications and government sectors for the Services
business so as to achieve stronger growth. The Group’s profitability during
this financial year also improved as the overall gross profit margin reached
7.27%, up from 7.07% of the same period of last financial year.
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As aleading IT products distributor and service provider in the Mainland,
the principal businesses of the Group continued to maintain a superior
position during this financial year. According to an analysis report provided
by IDC in April 2007, Digital China topped the list of IT product distributors
and service providers on the Mainland. According to an analysis report of
Sme@rtPartner in May 2007, the Distribution and Systems businesses of the
Group continued to occupy approximately 50% of the market share of the top
four distributors of the Mainland market during 2006, consolidating its role as
a market leader. According to an analysis report of IDC in April 2007, the
Group’s Services business ranked first among the local service providers in
the same industry, and also ranked the first in the two segment markets —
government and banking segments, as a local provider.

During this financial year, the Group adopted, following prudence
principle, financial treatments on certain special items not arose in this
financial year with contingency risks. On the other hand, in order to focus
on corporate innovation and the buildup of capabilities to maintain
sustainable business development, enhance the brand attractiveness,
the Group further increased its input to the software product development
and market development, and organized a series of large scale publicity
activities. As a result of the above two aspects, the Group’s profit
attributable to equity holders of the parent (profit attributable to
shareholders) during this financial year was affected. Relevant factors were
illustrated as follows:

(1) The Group recorded an exchange gain of approximately HK$109 million

for this financial year, representing an increase of HK$44 million over
HK$65 million of last financial year;
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After the completion of merger and acquisition of Beijing Si-Tech
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“STQ”) by the Group in the last
financial year, the new company fully expanded its integration business
with telecommunications customers and marketing for software
development services. In order to reflect the future profit and loss of
this new company in a clearer manner, based on prudence principle,
the Group charged in full the goodwill arising from the acquisition of
STQ of approximately HK$29 million as impairment in this financial
year. In addition, an investment loss of approximately HK$12 million
was recognized as a result of impairment for the intangible assets
contributed into Digital China System Access Holding Limited, a jointly-
controlled entity, by both joint venture parties;

During the third quarter of this financial year, the Group recovered
HK$8 million through a lawsuit, being part of an amount of
approximately HK$12 million trade receivable balance with a systems
business customer. Nevertheless, a bad debt loss of approximately
HK$4 million was eventually incurred;

During this financial year, the Group amortised and impaired an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$21 million in respect of the
intangible assets (development costs capitalised) capitalised in previous
financial years. No additional development costs were capitalised in
this financial year (additional development costs capitalised in the last
financial year exceeded the amount amortised and impaired by
approximately HK$7 million);

@
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5) The Group launched a series of large scale activities during this financial
year, including: “Annual Innovation Meeting” (BII#14F &) on the Theme
of “Digitization. Innovation. China” (8{F# &), the “2006 Summit of
Digital China Channel Partners” (200648 /1| 215 2R & % &€ ) on the
Theme of “Power of Flying” (FR¥FIEY £ ) , the “2006 Summit of Digital
China Value-added Services Senior Partners” (2006 4F 14 1 S5 1% &
RS PR AEBLIES) on the Theme of “Innovating Your World” (&l
FREYE ) and the ceremonies celebrating the establishment of
Digital China (Hefei) Company Limited (t&1 ##5 (A L) AR AR,
Fuzhou Digital China Company Limited (#& /4% £x85 AR A &) and
Changsha Digital China Company Limited (18 M S5 BR A 7)) .
These activities not only upgraded the brand image of the Company in
the industry, but also enhanced cooperation with local governments,
channels and customers, and promoted the Group’s in-depth business
development in different regions. However, the expense of organizing
large conferences and channel marketing activities and of the
establishment of the subsidiaries had certain impact on the Group’s
profit during this financial year.

The Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the parent during this
financial year was approximately HK$208 million, the return on
shareholders’ equity was 10.63%, representing a slight decrease
comparing to last financial year. Basic earnings per share and diluted
earnings per share were 23.92 HK cents and 23.78 HK cents.

The Group aimed at creating healthy cashflow during this financial year,
and insisted on the implementation of healthy business operation
strategies, and the Group’s operating cash flow and cash cycle also
achieved good performance. Net cash inflow from operating activities of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 amounted to approximately HK$571
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$441 million comparing
to the last financial year. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase
of trade and bill payables. For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group’s
cash cycle was 27.44 days, representing a decrease of 7.16 days comparing
to the last financial year, while the turnover days of the inventory and the trade
receivables decreased by 2.97 days and 3.99 days respectively.
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The Group’s Distribution business experienced robust growth in this financial
year. The turnover of the Group’s Distribution business for the year ended 31
March 2007 reached HK$14,728 million, representing an increase of 26.79%
from last financial year, far exceeding the growth rate of the PRC IT market.
The Distribution business of the Group emphasized the balance between
business growth and profitability. The gross profit margin for this financial year
increased to 4.79%, comparing to 4.69% of last financial year.

During this financial year, the Group’s Distribution business recorded rapid
growth in the turnover of its various major business sectors. The turnover of
notebook computers of the Group for this financial year grew by 41.73% from
last financial year. The turnover of consumer IT products increased by 46.74%
from last financial year. The turnover of PC servers increased by 41.27% from
last financial year. The turnover of accessories increased by 38.16% from last
financial year. The ACER notebook and desktop computers business, and
the FULFILLMENT business of the HP desktop computers, which was
introduced by the Group during last financial year, has brought a turnover of
exceeded HK$3,466 million for the year ended 31 March 2007, representing
an increase of HK$2,054 million from last financial year.

The Group continued to reinforce its cooperation with channels for the Group’s
Distribution business. The “2006 Summit of Digital China Channel Partners”
(200618 )1 25 R EE &S ) on the Theme of “Power of Flying” (FR¥E) 7
) held in Zhuhai on 5-7 December 2006 was attended by over 800 excellent
channels. The initiation of “Flying Project” (FR¥IT#2) , a project aimed to further
enhance the cooperation with the channels, drew tremendous responses. As
at 31 March 2007, the number of effective channels for its Distribution business
reached 5,956, representing an increase of 31.39% from the end of last financial
year.
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Regarding the Group’s Distribution business, the Group further optimized its
business processes on the basis of its business process management system.
The Group focused on the optimization of order process this financial year:
continued the working method of CPI (Continuous Process Innovation) adopted
from last financial year and conducted quantitative analysis on the factors
affecting order efficiency and continued to improve and optimize so as to
improve the efficiency of the Distribution business in handling orders and
enhance operating efficiency and customers’ satisfaction.

The turnover of the Group’s Systems business for the year ended 31 March
2007 reached HK$7,352 million, representing an increase of 29.44% comparing
to last financial year. While expanding the business scale, the Group maintained
its profitability through the in-depth cooperation with channels partners. Gross
profit margin for this financial year increased to 9.51% comparing to 8.92% of
last financial year.

During this financial year, the Group’s Systems business recorded significant
growth in the turnover of its various major business sectors comparing to the
last financial year. The turnover of network products increased by 28.03%
comparing to last financial year. The turnover of packaged software increased
by 23.74% comparing to last financial year. The turnover of storage products
increased by 14.28% comparing to last financial year. The turnover of UNIX
servers increased by 13.98% comparing to last financial year. By adopting
the strategy of meeting suppliers’ business requirements for expansion into
medium and small cities, the Group recorded substantial growth in the turnover
of its four major products during this financial year, and further consolidated
its advantageous position in the UNIX server, network product and packaged
software sectors.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

AEBDHEBEERNCERTEEREBREN Y, Bk —
SECEBTE RAMFESZE NNFTERENEL EE L
BF4F 5 A HJCPI (Continuous Process Innovation * 4 H);772
B M IER R Bt OB B RN S @S E: Tii“"Eﬁl
= BERL oEESNTERRAERGRES MRTE
MERATEFPMEE.

HE-_ZTLHF-A-1+-—HZFE A5ERREHEESE

EIEET 352B BT B R FIER29.44% © TEIREIERAIF
B AEERBMNARBENRESIE BFGENREBEE 2F
EMEAE51% B EHF8.92% EFto

AEERAYFARREBES T EEBEEHNEEER
B RRRERIE R AR E M R E IR R28.03% - B
HEFEEER LI FIRR3.74% @ FRAREEERR LIMF
#R14.28% + UNIXfRIARES & 3788 ERI 6P R 13.98% © 7EHT
BEAERR MR R A SRES T R E B R AN F KA E
MR RAZE H EUNIXFAIARES B4R E R EETY
LB BB SEE—PIBE.



The Group’s Systems business reinforced the expansion of regional channels
during this financial year. Comparing to 31 March 20086, the total number of
channels increased by 16% as at 31 March 2007. During this financial year,
the Group’s Systems business organized “2006 Conference of Channels in
Tier 2 and 3 Cities” (2006 %= Z Jik) in 18 provinces and autonomous
regions, and the “2006 Summit of Digital China Value-added Services Senior
Partners” (2006 F 16N S5 L ER B = RS (ERFFIEE) on the Theme of
“Innovating Your World” (BIFT/REItHE ) . Meanwnhile, persistent efforts were
made to promote a series of cooperative programs with the Core Channels,
and Core Channels Authorizing Conference (#%/03RiEBIEE A K IZIE) was
organized to reinforce the support and management to the channels and
enhance business values.

The Group continued to reinforce its service capability during this financial
year. The number of technical staff increased from 178 persons as at 31 March
2006 to 208 persons as at 31 March 2007. The Group has adjusted its service
and product portfolio and completed the compilation of the service and product
manual of the Systems business. Services business of the Group’s Systems
business achieved remarkable results and the turnover of services business
recorded a 114% growth comparing to last financial year.

The Group’s Services business maintained rapid grow. For the year ended 31
March 2007, the turnover of the Services business of the Group recorded
HK$3,339 million, representing a 29.97% growth comparing to last financial
year. While expanding the business scale, the Group maintained its profitability
and its overall gross profit margin reached 13.30%.
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During this financial year, the Group continued to adhere to its customer-
oriented principle in its Services business, which contributed to the steady
growth of different sectors. The Group maintained its advantageous position
in key sectors such as the finance, telecommunications and government
sectors. In the telecommunications sector, the Group continued to cooperate
with leading telecommunication operators such as China Mobile and China
Network Communications, with whom the Group has entered into a number
of billion-worth contracts. After the acquisition of STQ, the Group added four
core mobile customers, successfully secured the contract of Anhui Unicom’s
BSS project and became an system integrator of the mobile agent service
(MAS) for the headquarter of China Mobile, and expanded the traditional
business support system. Regarding the tax sector, the Group has achieved
remarkable results in managing large clients such as the State Administration
of Taxation, Shenzhen Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation,
Liaoning Bureau of Local Taxation. In the government sector, the Group has
achieved steady progress and secured new major clients such as PetroChina
and the Ministry of Science and Technology.

Regarding improvement of the service system, the Group established the
products support and IT outsourcing and maintenance service delivery centre
in this financial year in order to lay a foundation for service process and cost
reduction. The Group also established a technological operation platform to
improve utilization efficiency of resources and strengthen process control.
Besides, the Group increased its investment in the commercialization and
standardization of services. The Group also passed the international certification
of IT service management (ITIL/ITSM) system ISO 20000, and became the
first enterprise obtaining such certification in the PRC after such international
standard was upgraded to ISO20000:2005.

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the products support and IT outsourcing
and maintenance services of the Group’s Services business concluded
contracts valued over HK$400 million, representing an increase of more than
50% from last financial year. The Group concluded million-worth contracts
with all of the four leading telecommunication operators. The Services business
of the Group also successfully secured new major clients in the non-
telecommunications sectors, such as the banking, insurance and tax sectors.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group’s Services business devoted
additional efforts on transformation by establishing and promoting three core
capabilities. Firstly, transforming from customer on-site development to
centralized development — the Group’s Services business significantly enhanced
the infrastructure capabilities of its Xi’an software development base. The
construction of infrastructure facilities was basically completed and substantial
investment was also made in the expansion and training of workforce. Secondly,
transforming from application software development business to IT operation
outsourcing business — building up the capability of providing comprehensive
operation outsourcing services of labour, equipment and facilities. Thirdly,
transforming from customized software development to software product
development — the Group’s Services business increased its contribution in
software product development for its major sectors such as finance,
telecommunications and government, leading to enhancement of its software
product capabilities and improvement of delivery efficiencies.

The financial year 2006/07 is the first year of the Group’s new five-year plan.
The Group’s management capabilities will be facing new tests again. Besides
promoting business development by stepping up the persistent efforts on the
key scopes of R (Risk), D (Development), C (Customer), the Group commenced
work in various aspects to improve capabilities in brand, resource and culture
management.

M Brand promotion centering around the strategic theme of “IT Services
Innovation” began to bear fruit. The success of the innovative
conferences and the large scale marketing activities launched by the
Distribution and Systems businesses respectively contributed
significantly to deepening the Group’s brand identity in IT services and
promoting the Group’s innovative concepts. The effective promotion
of brand identity created more favourable conditions for the expansion
of the Group’s various businesses. Meanwhile, Digital China (Hefei)
Company Limited (1812t (G A2) AR 2 7)), Fuzhou Digital China
Company Limited (&N 1% 224575 iR 2 7]) and Changsha Digital China
Company Limited (#2485 B R 2 7)) were established during
this financial year. This not only effectively enhanced communications
with local governments and different sectors, but also upgraded Digital
China’s brand image and provided impetus for the Group’s in-depth
business development in these three provinces.
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Regarding human resource management, the Group’s management
stepped up the training of talents with high calibre and potentials and
tried to explore a set of proven and effective talent training methods
and mechanism, so as to lay the foundation for the Company’s talent
ladder. The Group reactivated the “talent programme” in the campus
again and upgraded its employer’s image in all the pivotal colleges
and universities.

The Group continued to strengthen its fund and process management
and risk control during this financial year. By raising awareness of fund
efficiency and innovating financial tools on an on-going basis, the Group
gradually established its core competitiveness centering at the overall
risk management system of increasing fund returns.

The Group has stepped up the development of corporate culture to
enhance corporate cohesion, motivate and encourage staff to innovate
new ideas. During this financial year, the Group organized a series of
corporate culture activities targeting at technical staff, sales personnel
and supportive staff and received overwhelming responses from the
staff.
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The management of the Group are satisfied with the Group’s outstanding
business and management results achieved in this financial year. In the coming
year, the Group will, under the directive of IT service transformation, continue
to deepen its customer-oriented business model, innovate and enhance value,
and deepen the development of RDC capabilities.

At the same time, the Group will still face huge pressures and challenges
internally or externally. Firstly, due to intensified market competition, the Group
still faces the risk of decline in gross profit margin for Distribution and Systems
businesses; Secondly, increase in the interest rate of RMB and USD borrowings
leads to increase in the finance costs of the Group; Thirdly, amortisation of the
Group’s intangible assets (development costs capitalised) remained; Fourthly,
the Group will increase its investment in human resources and research and
development capabilities of IT services business so as to further improve the
core competitiveness of the Group’s Services business; and Fifthly, in order to
improve its market influence and competitiveness, the Group will maintain its
cordial relationship with the government, suppliers and business partners, and
continue its input on brand advertising and promotion.

The management will formulate its annual plan and budget under a pragmatic
principle and execute policies under an effective implementation assurance
system. The management is confident that the result of the Group will record
growth in the financial year of 2007/08, which will lay a more solid foundation
for its development in the next five years.

The Group mainly finances its operations with internally generated cash flows,
bank loans and banking facilities.

The Group had total assets of HK$6,885 million at 31 March 2007 which were
financed by total liabilities of HK$4,912 million, minority interests of HK$12
million and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent of HK$1,961
million. The Group’s current ratio at 31 March 2007 was 1.44 as compared to
1.25 at 31 March 20086.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, capital expenditure of HK$81 million
was incurred for the acquisition of office equipment and leasehold
improvements of buildings in Beijing.
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The aggregate interest-bearing borrowings as a ratio of equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent was 0.63 at 31 March 2007 as compared to 0.68
at 31 March 2006. The computation of the said ratio was based on the total
interest-bearing borrowings of HK$1,237 million (31 March 2006: HK$1,206
million) and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent of HK$1,961
million (31 March 2006: HK$1,787 million).

At 31 March 2007, the denomination of the interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group was shown as follows:

Current B

Interest-bearing bank borrowings, Bt BIRITE R IR
unsecured

Interest-bearing bank borrowings, M ESRITER BEM
secured

FERB
MR RITER BN

Non-current
Interest-bearing bank borrowings,
unsecured

Total A&

The Group’s current borrowings of approximately HK$34 million extended by
financial institutions to a subsidiary of the Group, Beijing Si-Tech Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (“STQ”), were secured by a property situated in the
Mainland China with a value of approximately HK$16 million at 31 March 2007
and 14,061,976 issued shares of STQ in favour of Beijing Zhongguancun Sci-
Tech Guaranty Co. Ltd. (the “Pledgee”), an independent third party, for securing
a guarantee issued by such Pledgee on behalf of STQ. The Group’s non-
current bank borrowings of approximately HK$604 million represented the
term loans and are repayable from Year 2008 to 2012.
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HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BT BT BT

599,887 - 599,887

- 33,649 33,649

599,887 33,649 633,536

- 603,697 603,697

599,887 637,346 1,237,233
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The Group’s total available credit facilities at 31 March 2007 amounted to
HK$7,361 million, of which HK$1,000 million were in term loan facilities,
HK$4,524 million were in trade lines and HK$1,837 million were in short-term
and revolving money market facilities. At 31 March 2007, the facility drawn
down was HK$604 million in term loan facilities, HK$2,150 million in trade
lines and HK$313 million in short-term and revolving money market facilities.

Under the normal course of business, the Group has issued performance
bonds to some customers for potential claims of non-performance in order to
satisfy the specific requirements of these customers. As no material claims
had been made by the customers under such performance bonds in the past,
the management considers that the possibility of realisation of any actual
material liabilities arising from such performance bonds is remote.

At 31 March 2007, the Group had approximately 6,700 (31 March 2006:
approximately 5,400) full-time employees. The majority of these employees
work in the PRC. The Group offers remuneration packages in line with industry
practice. Employees’ remuneration includes basic salaries and bonuses. With
the increase in the total number of staff to cope with its business requirements,
the Group has recorded a 37.13% increase in staff costs to approximately
HK$878 million for the year ended 31 March 2007 as compared with an
approximate sum of approximately HK$640 million for the last financial year.
In order to attract and retain a high caliber of capable and motivated workforce,
the Company offers share options to staff based on the individual performance
and the achievements of the Company’s targets. The Group is committed to
providing its staff with various in-house and external training and development
programs.
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Directors and
Senior Management
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Mr. LI Qin, aged 66, is the Chairman of the Group, and responsible for
overseeing the businesses of the Group and the strategic development and
management of the Group’s operations in China. He graduated from Xian
University of Technology in 1965 and has over 40 years of experience in the
computer industry. Being a founder and one of the principal management of
the Legend group, Mr. Li managed the daily operation of the Legend group;
worked jointly with other principal management to formulate Legend’s macro
objectives, initiated all-rounded plans and implementation solutions; put forward
and upheld innovation and challenging managerial work which all contributed
to enhance the group’s overall benefits. In 2001, the Legend group carried
out a strategic restructuring to spin-off Digital China separately listed on the
main board in Hong Kong. Mr. Li serves as the Chairman of the board of
directors of Digital China. Mr. Li has made outstanding contributions to the
development milestone of the Legend group. In 1992, Mr. Li was awarded
“Outstanding Technology Entrepreneur of Civil Enterprise” by the Committee
of Science and Technology of China and in the same year, he was also
honoured as China’s Outstanding Mid-Youth Scientist. In 1994, Mr. Li was
awarded “Excellence Entrepreneur in High-Technology Industry” by the Beijing
Municipal Science & Technology Commission. In 2000, he was awarded “City
Model of Labor of Beijing”.
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Mr. GUO Wei, aged 44, is the Vice Chairman, the President and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, and responsible for the strategic development
and management of the Group. Mr. Guo obtained a Master’s degree from the
Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Science (formerly known as
Graduate School of the University of Science and Technology of China) in
1988. He joined the Legend group in 1988 and was once an Executive Director
and Senior Vice President. In 2003, Mr. Guo was awarded China’s Economic
Leaders by The World Economic Forum. Besides, Mr. Guo was also awarded
China’s Top Ten Outstanding Youth, 2%t H & S R (L 42 (Practical and
Qutstanding Youth of Achievement) and Top Ten Most Valuable Manager in
China in 2002. He currently is the Vice President of the Chinese Young
Entrepreneurs Association and the Vice President of Chinese Young Technology
Professional Association. He has over 19 years of experience in business
strategy development and business management.

Mr. ZENG Maochao, aged 74, is an Executive Director of the Company and
responsible for the review and supervision of the Group’s internal controls. Mr.
Zeng graduated from the Department of Electrical Engineering of Shanghai
Jiao Tong University in 1957. He was the Director and Professor of the Institute
of Computing Technology of the Chinese Academy of Sciences. He has over
50 years of experience in the computer industry.
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Mr. LIN Yang, aged 40, is the Executive Vice President of the Group and
responsible for the overall business management of the Group. Mr. Lin
graduated in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Computing Communications
from the Xidian University. He joined the Legend group in 1990 and has over
16 years of management experience in distribution business.

Mr. HUA Zhinian, aged 45, is a Senior Vice President of the Group and
responsible for overseeing the software and services businesses of the Group.
Mr. Hua graduated in 1984 with a Master’s degree in Electronics and Physics
from the Twelfth Graduate School of Mechanical and Electrical Department.
He joined the Legend group in 1992 and has extensive experience in corporate
planning, development of information systems and budget management.

Mr. William O. GRABE, aged 69, is a Non-Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Grabe is a Managing Director with General Atlantic LLC (“General Atlantic”),
a worldwide private equity firm, where he has worked since 1992. Mr. Grabe
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from New York University and a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from University of California at
Los Angeles, United States of America. With a 30-year career at IBM prior to
joining General Atlantic, Mr. Grabe has broad international experience and an
extensive sales and marketing background. As a Managing Director with
General Atlantic, Mr. Grabe is also a director of Patni Computer Systems
Limited, Lenovo Group Limited, LHS GmbH and Liberata Limited. His outside
affiliations include being a member of the UCLA Anderson School Board of
Visitors, a member of the Cancer Research Institute Board of Trustees, a
director of Outward Bound International, a trustee of the Nature Conservancy
of Connecticut, and a director of Compuware Corporation and Gartner, Inc..
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Mr. HU Zhao Guang, aged 68, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Hu graduated from the Tsinghua University in 1964 and
also completed a management course in Sweden. Mr. Hu has over 35 years
of experience in economics, finance and corporate management and was
wide recognised for his work in these areas. He was previously the chairman
of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited and its parent company, Beijing Holdings
Limited, and an independent non-executive director of China Overseas Land
& Investment Limited. From February 1993 to January 1998, Mr. Hu served
as a Vice Mayor of the Beijing Municipal Government. From 1988 to 1993, Mr.
Hu served as the director of Beijing New Technology Development Zone and
chief executive of Beijing Haidian District Government.

Professor WU Jinglian, aged 77, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. Professor Wu is a senior research fellow at the Development
Research Center of the State Council and a professor at the Graduate School
of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences and China Europe International
Business School. Professor Wu graduated from Fudan University. He was
previously an Executive Director at the Development Research Center of the
State Council and a Deputy Director of the Programming Office for Economic
Reform of the State Council. Professor Wu was also a visiting fellow at Yale
University, a fellow at St. Antony’s College of Oxford University, a chair professor
at the Stanford University, and a visiting fellow at the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology. Professor Wu is also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China Unicom Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong whose shares
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis, aged 42, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
and has over 19 years of experience in auditing, taxation, management and
financial advisory. Previously, Mr. Wong worked for KPMG, an international
accounting firm for 6 years and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited for 2 years. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a member of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Wong holds a master degree in
management conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University, the People’s Republic
of China. Mr. Wong has the appropriate professional qualifications, accounting
and related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Wong is also currently Independent Non-Executive Director and either
chairman or member of the Audit/Remuneration Committee of China Oriental
Group Company Limited, Wai Kee Holdings Limited and Yardway Group
Limited, the shares of these three companies are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. He was once an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Enviro Energy International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Sys Solutions
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the growth enterprise market of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is a Director of Union Alpha C.P.A. Limited (which
incorporated Francis Wong C.P.A. Co. Limited).

Mr. KWAN Ming Heung, Peter, aged 50, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Kwan graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce
in Accounting Management Information Systems from the University of British
Columbia, Canada, 1980. Mr. Kwan is a Chartered Accountant and is a member
of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. In addition to his public
practice with Price Waterhouse Coopers in Vancouver, Canada, he has over
16 years of experience in IT related industries. He has held senior finance and
management positions in Asia Pacific and has worked in Canada, Hong Kong,
Australia and Singapore. He is a Director of MM PowerPlus Busway (HK)
Limited, an electrical products manufacturing company owned by himself and
his partner. Mr. Kwan was previously a director of Avaya Global Connect Limited
(India listed) during the period from January 2004 to April 2005.
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Mr. MAO Xianggqian, aged 42, is a Senior Vice President of the Group and
responsible for the operation management of the general information
technology products distribution business of the Group. Mr. Mao graduated
in 1988 with a Master’s degree in Mechanical Manufacturing Engineering from
Tianjin University. He joined the Legend group in 1989 and was mainly
responsible for the management of regional headquarters and distribution
business. He has over 19 years of operation management experience in
distribution business.

Mr. CHEN Yong, aged 40, is a Senior Vice President of the Group and
responsible for the operational management of the Group’s IT services business.
Mr. Chen graduated in 1993 with a Master’s degree in Computer Application
from Beijing University of Technology. He joined the Legend group in 1993
and was mainly responsible for the management of high-end systems products
and IT services business. He has over 14 years of experience in the operational
management of high-end systems products business.

Mr. WONG Chi Keung, aged 40, is the Company Secretary of the Company.
He is also the Qualified Accountant of the Company. Mr. Wong graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences
and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wong is a qualified accountant and has over 17 years of experience in
financial management and corporate administration. He is mainly responsible
for the financial reporting and listing issues of the Group.
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Corporate Governance
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The Group is committed to promote the highest standards of corporate
governance throughout the Group and particularly at Board level so as to
enhance its transparency and accountability to the shareholders.

Subsequent to the publication of the Corporate Governance Report in the
2005/06 annual report, a special resolution was passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 August 2006 to amend the Company’s
Bye-Laws to the effect that: (i) any Director or Directors or Chairman of the
meeting who, individually or collectively, hold proxies in respect of shares
representing 5% or more of the total voting rights at a general meeting may
demand a poll; and (i) the Company in general meeting will have the power by
ordinary resolution, instead of special resolution, to remove a Director before
the expiration of his period of office.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2007, except for the following deviations:

(1) Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

All Directors of the Company (including executive and non-executive
Directors) were not appointed for any specific term. However, all
Directors (save for Chairman or Managing Director) are subject to
retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws and shall be eligible for re-election. The
Board of Directors shall ensure all Directors (including the Chairman
and Managing Director) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years so as to accomplish the same purpose
as a specific term of appointment.
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The second part of Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Company’s Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, the number nearest to one-third shall retire from
office provided that notwithstanding anything herein, the Chairman of
the Board and the Managing Director shall not, whilst holding such
office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in
determining the number of Directors to retire in each year. In view of
good corporate governance practices, the Chairman of the Company
voluntarily retires from his office once every three years notwithstanding
that he is not required to do so by the Bye-Laws.

The Company publishes quarterly financial results of the Group by
way of announcement which exceed the code provisions set out in
the Code. However the Company does not publish and distribute report
for quarterly results of the Group.

The Board is of the view that publication of quarterly financial reports
is a matter of “recommended best practices” in the Code which are
for guidance only. Furthermore, as a matter of principle and practice,
quarterly reporting does not bring significant benefits to shareholders,
but at the cost of their own.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model
Code”) as its code of conduct of the Company for directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2007 .

As at 31 March 2007, the Board comprised ten directors, including five
executive directors, one non-executive director and four independent non-
executive directors. The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

Biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 30 to 34 of this
annual report.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the overall strategy and
management of the Group such as the Group’s long term objectives and
commercial strategy, the approval of the Group’s corporate and capital
structure, financial reporting and controls, internal controls and risk
management, material contracts, communication with the shareholders, board
membership and other appointments, remuneration of directors and other
senior management, delegation of authority to board committees and corporate
governance matters.
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The Board held four regular meetings during the year ended 31 March 2007
at approximately quarterly intervals where the Directors attended either in
person or by other means of electronic communication. The attendance records
of the Board meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2007 are set out
below:
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Attended
HERE
Executive Directors HiITEF
LI Qin (Chairman) =8 (FE) 4/4
GUO Wei (Vice Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer) — 384 (BT /EH#EEH R EEHITE) 4/4
ZENG Maochao &G A 4/4
LIN Yang t5 4/4
HUA Zhinian HENLF 4/4
Non-Executive Director FHITEE
William O. GRABE William O. GRABE 3/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHBITEE
HU Zhao Guang HARE 4/4
WU Jinglian R 4/4
WONG Man Chung, Francis (appointed on 23 August 2006) BXR (RZEENFN\AZF=HEZT) 3/4
KWAN Ming Heung, Peter KWAN Ming Heung, Peter
(appointed on 23 August 2006) (R-ZFBENFNA -+ =HEZEE) 3/4
LEUNG Pak To, Francis (resigned on 23 August 2006) 208 (R=EENFNA=Z1+=HEHF) 1/4

The Board is empowered under the Company’s Bye-Laws to appoint any
person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Qualified candidates will be proposed to the Board for consideration
and the selection criteria are mainly based on the assessment of their
professional qualifications, experience and their possible contribution to the
Group. In August 2006, Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis and Mr. KWAN Ming
Heung, Peter were appointed as Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company with unanimous approval by Directors.

Upon appointment, Directors receive a board pack of materials such as a
brief outline of the role of a director and a summary of responsibilities on
ongoing obligations under legislation, regulation and best practice, summary
details of the Company’s business and other board issues.
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Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed four independent non-executive directors and one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

All independent non-executive directors were not appointed for any specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws and shall be eligible for re-
election.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all the independent non-executive directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that they are independent.

A remuneration committee was established on 31 August 2006 with specific
written terms of reference. The committee was made up of three members,
namely Mr. ZENG Maochao (Chairman), Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis and
Mr. KWAN Ming Heung, Peter, the majority of whom are independent non-
executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for, among others, determine
and agree with the Board the framework and policy, take into account all
factors which it deems necessary, for the remuneration of the Chief Executive
Officer, Chairman and the executive directors, determine the total individual
remuneration package of each executive director (including the Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman) and other senior executives including bonuses, incentive
payments and share options or other share awards within the terms of the
agreed policy and in consultation with the Chairman and/or Chief Executive
Officer as appropriate.
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The Remuneration Committee held two regular meetings during the year ended
31 March 2007 at approximately half-yearly intervals where the members
attended in person. The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2007 are set out below:

LXH (£/F)

EwXR

ZENG Maochao (Chairman)
WONG Man Chung, Francis
KWAN Ming Heung, Peter

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages of the Chief Executive Officer and each executive
director including salaries, bonuses and share options.

Details of Director’s emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2007 are set
out in note 9 to the financial statements.

The position of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate individuals. The roles of the Chairman are separate from that of the
Chief Executive Officer. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer is clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board and creating the
conditions for overall board and individual director effectiveness, both inside
and outside the boardroom.

The Chief Executive Officer is accountable to the Board and reports to the
Chairman directly and is responsible for running the Group’s business.

KWAN Ming Heung, Peter
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All members of the Audit Committee are independent non-executive directors
and one of whom has the appropriate professional qualifications, accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among others, the integrity of the
financial statements of the Group, reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and risk management systems, reviewing the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal audit function in the context of the Group’s overall risk
management system and oversight of the relationship with external auditors.

The Audit Committee held four regular meetings during the year ended 31
March 2007 at approximately quarterly intervals where the members attended
either in person or by other means of electronic communication. The attendance
records of the Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 March
2007 are set out below:

EZZBE2RREBURABUINTES Hh—RABAE
ZEEERREF AR BEEEENR-

ERZEERE (EPEE) AREMBHRRZ 2B R
SENEPEE K A B IR HIE 2 R BE AR B A B E )
BEST N BRI B TR I 2 AR MBS B BRSNS AR BB 2 BER -

BE_ZTLF-A=t+—RLFE BRZESRITHLE
s AMEFTE—R KERFIUEMLEFBHAT AL
BRBE_ZTLF=A=+—HILFE BREZEEER
HERERNT

Attended

H R E

HU Zhao Guang (Chairman) HRRRE (£/E) 4/4

WU Jinglian R 4/4

WONG Man Chung, Francis (appointed on 23 August 2006) BXR (R=EENFN\AZF=HEZT) 3/4
KWAN Ming Heung, Peter (appointed on 23 August 2006) KWAN Ming Heung, Peter

(R-ZFEENFNAZF+=ZHEZE) 3/4

LEUNG Pak To, Francis (resigned on 23 August 2006) 208 (R=EENFNA=Z1+=HEHF) 1/4

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Audit Committee reviewed with senior
management and the Company’s auditors their respective audit findings, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, legal and regulatory
compliance, and internal control, risk management and financial reporting
matters. The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular
reviews of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2007.

The Audit Committee has no disagreement with the Board on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the auditors of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2007, the remuneration to the Auditors of the
Company were approximately HK$3,710,000 for audit services and
HK$585,000 for non-audit services (in which agreed-upon procedures on
connected transactions was HK$65,000, taxation planning services was
HK$70,000 and agreed-upon procedures on quarterly/interim results was
HK$450,000).

Principle

The Board of Directors should ensure that the internal control of the issuer is
solid, sound, effective, so as to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
issuer’s assets.

Internal Control and Risk Management

A well-designed internal control system is very important to the protection of
the Group’s assets, the reliability of its financial statements, and its compliance
with legislation and rules. As such, the Group is committed to establishing
and maintaining a sound system of internal control system to provide
reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against any serious
misrepresentation or loss, and to manage, though not eliminate, any risk of
serious mistakes regarding the operation system and the objectives of the
Group. The Board of Directors also perceives its overall responsibility for the
internal control, financial control and risk management of the Company, and
will review its effectiveness from time to time.

The Group has an internal audit department, which is responsible for the internal
audit of the Group, independent assessment of risks, and internal control
procedures and system, and reports its findings, with recommendations, to
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

The Internal Audit Department will assess the risks to which the Company is
exposed, and formulate an audit plan on that basis annually, so as to ensure
that the internal audit covers all areas of high risks. The audit plan will be
submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The scope of audit review is
determined based on the risk assessment results. Special reviews will be
conducted on matters which are of concern to the management or the Audit
Committee.
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Monitoring Procedures
The Board of Directors establishes and maintains a good internal control system
through the following principal procedures:

(1) Establishing a reasonable and effective organization structure with clear
functions, responsibilities, and authority;

2 Laying down stringent procedures for budget preparation and budget
management; formulating business plans and financial budgets
annually; rationally adjusting the organization structure based on
business planning; ensuring the effective operation of the organization;
reviewing the implementation of budgets; and making reasonable
adjustment based on the latest conditions;

3) The Internal Audit Department — independently assessing the
comprehensibility and effectiveness of the monitoring of principal
business; reporting its principal findings, with recommendations, to
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis; and

(4) The Auditor — making a “management proposal” in its audit of annual
results; recommending ways to address some internal management
areas which are correspondingly weak; the management — making
serious reviews, and making and submitting improvement proposals
to the Audit Committee.

Assessment of Annual Internal Monitoring

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the Internal Audit Department adopted a
risk-based methodology to focus on and monitor principal workflow, and
reported the internal audit results to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.
Through the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal monitoring system of the Group. The internal monitoring system
covers all important matters to be monitored, including finance, operation and
compliance matters, as well as risk management functions. The Board of
Directors firmly believes that the Group was in full compliance with the internal
control provisions set out in the governance rules in the 2006/07 financial
year.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group on a going concern basis in accordance
with the statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 59 to 60 of this annual report.
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The directors of the Company have pleasure in submitting their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the distribution of general information technology and
systems products and provision of systems integration services.

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 March 2007 are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by business is set
out in note 4 to the financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 and the state of
affairs at that date of the Company and the Group are set out in the financial
statements on pages 61 to 161 of this annual report.

The directors of the Company recommend the payment of a final dividend of
8.28 HK cents per share (2006: 10 HK cents) in respect of the year ended 31
March 2007 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 22 August 2007. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet and the balance
sheet of the Group and the Company respectively.

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 162 of this annual
report. The five year financial summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

ARREEMARERSE CREERARTDREMB R A
([F&EE])BE_ZZLF= A=+ A ILFEZEELER
BMBEHER-

AAR—REEBER AR -EX2MBAR T RN ED B
AAMMR R RGERRIEHRERERRSS

ARG EEHBARNR-BRLES A=+—AZHER
MBI RE=HITE20 - AME Y X ERMIENAFENILEE
AEAED:
T 5 BIEDIT 2 A AL 2 A R E SRR
R

AEEBE_TTHF=A=1T—HBILFERAZEEARK
RENZA 2 ABERBENAFIREC1AEFE 161 B M TEH
Bk

RAEZEFAN_TTLENAZFTZBEIARD
%%%Zki/ﬁﬁféxi,YYﬁi A=1+— ElJrEJ*z;K
HRR B EAR8.28 L (ZTT/NF 105 (L) - IEEZEE HIR
RUBRE DINEARERRARR 2R EEABRELR
EaBEXRNER MREBEMNZ .

ARENBEREMRER 2 ¥ NAE AEEDBERE
S EHNANFRE162H - A F I BB L TEREEZY
TBEHRRE — &P o

RAFEAREBRANRYE BEREEZ
B R R M 150

BHHERR



Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Details of movements, together with the reasons therefor, in the share capital
of the Company during the year are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity set out on page 64 of this annual report,
respectively.

At 31 March 2007, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$869,553,000, of which HK$72,370,000 has been proposed as a final
dividend for the year. In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of HK$319,572,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws
or the laws of Bermuda although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

Report of
the Directors

EEERS

RAFEANREEIREY R 2 BEFEHRN P RRME6 -

RAEEAARRRIRA 2 S EhFIEE
=M 5E33°

FBREAHENIBR

RAFEARNERARRAEEHEZZEFED R BN R
KA RAFRECAR 2 Ir S E RN

R-ZTTLF=A=+—A BEAFEARETE AARZ
A 5 ik & 58 A8 869,553,000t H A ##72,370,000
TR RHIEAREANTEE 2 RS o RA B 2 B HE
IR A7E1319,572,0007T AT AR AL FIRR D 2 F AR

ARAT R BRI B REEGN EA R BT Z 153 I
BREAD W L2 S RN E PR S

MBS BR AT F3, 06/07



Report of
the Directors

EEERS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Mr. LI Qin (Chairman)

Mr. GUO Wei (Vice Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZENG Maochao

Mr. LIN Yang

Mr. HUA Zhinian

Mr. William O. GRABE

Mr. HU Zhao Guang
Professor WU Jinglian

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis (appointed on 23 August 2006)
Mr. KWAN Ming Heung, Peter (appointed on 23 August 2006)
Mr. LEUNG Pak To, Francis (resigned on 23 August 2006)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. GUO Wei,
Mr. ZENG Maochao and Mr. HU Zhao Guang will retire from office by rotation
in accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and Mr. WONG
Man Chung, Francis and Mr. KWAN Ming Heung, Peter will retire from office in
accordance with Bye-Law 102(B). Being eligible, all of them will offer themselves
for re-election.
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Each of the executive directors of the Company entered into a service
agreement with the Company which shall continue in force unless and until
terminated by (i) either the Company or the director serving on the other not
less than three months’ notice, or (i) his retirement as a director without being
re-elected as a director by the shareholders in an annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, or (iii) in the event of the director’s
default under the terms of the service agreement.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a
service agreement with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than the
statutory compensation).

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

The Company has two share option schemes. The old share option scheme
was adopted on 14 May 2001 (the “2001 Share Option Scheme”) and
terminated on 18 July 2002. Despite termination and no further options can
be granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme, the provisions of the 2001
Share Option Scheme remain in full force and effect in all other respects to
govern all outstanding options granted prior to termination. The existing share
option scheme was adopted on 18 July 2002 (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”). Details of movements in the share options during the year and the
options outstanding at the beginning and end of the year of both the 2001
Share Option Scheme and the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in note
34 to the financial statements.
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At 31 March 2007, the interests and short positions, if any, of each director
and chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were required to be notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the directors and chief executives were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and are
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies adopted by the Company (the
“Model Code”) were as follows:

Shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

RIBZLF=A=+—B ARRZEZRITBEHRRKE
ZHMBARAAR R EBEAE (ERREFLMERD ([
R EIRIRDI | SEXVER) 2Bty IBRA ) R EREE P B A IRE
EH LG EPIEXVEPET R E8 D AR MG AN A R R & B
BRGMARAR (MM 2B KA (11F) (BER
BHRAGEG T2 BRIGR T REREIRGIERE 21
HBRKRE) RARARBLRARRRIRIEES R GEISE
XVEPFB521GFE 2 B MA RBEAR R RM 2 LA
BEERTEFZSHORESTR ([RETA]) BAERARR
B 2 R RORB AN T :

AR AR EEEE0. 10T 2R

Name of directors Capacity Interests in shares

EEpgg 514 RO EE 2R

(Note 1) (Fit&E1)

LI Qin Beneficial owner 1,016,000
&) EmfAA

GUO Wei Beneficial owner 904,000
By BE&EEAA

ZENG Maochao Beneficial owner 808,000
XEA BB A

Interest of spouse 60,000

fe 8 2 #E s (Note 2) (F#£2)

LIN Yang Beneficial owner 220,000
M5 BEHEAA

HUA Zhinian Beneficial owner -
FENF BB A
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Interests in Percentage of
underlying shares aggregate holding (%)
REBERGEE2ER AHEREZBHHE(%)
(Note 1) (Fi#5E1) (Note 3) (Fit5E3)
2,500,000 0.40

10,600,000 1.32

- 0.09

= 0.007

5,500,000 0.65

3,600,000 0.41



Notes: B :

1. All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company were 1.
long positions. None of the directors and chief executive of the Company or their
associates held any short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
at 31 March 2007. Interests in underlying shares of the Company represented share
options granted to such directors and chief executive, further details of which are set
out in the sub-section (2) headed “Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares” below.

2. The 60,000 Shares were owned by the spouse of Mr. ZENG Maochao. 2

3. The percentage of aggregate holding were calculated on the basis of 874,039,081 3.
shares of the Company in issue at 31 March 2007.

Name of Directors Date of grant Exercisable period
BN RH A 1TEH
LI Qin 24/06/2004 24/06/2005-23/06/2012
&)
GUO Wei 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
Ely=) 31/08/2001 31/08/2002-30/08/2009
12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
LIN Yang 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
iz 31/08/2001 31/08/2002-30/08/2009
12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
HUA Zhinian 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
ENF 31/08/2001 31/08/2002-30/08/2009
12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
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Outstanding as

Subscription at 31 March 2007
price per Share BZE-_ZZtHF
BRAEE =H=+—H
HKS E# e RATHE
2.068 2,500,000

2.750 5,000,000

1.976 2,800,000

3.180 2,800,000

2.750 2,500,000

1.976 1,500,000

3.180 1,500,000

2.750 2,000,000

1.976 500,000

3.180 1,100,000
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Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2007, none of the directors and chief
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the directors and chief executives were taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At 31 March 2007, the following persons, not being a director or chief executive
of the Company, had the following interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name Notes Capacity
=g M 55
Legend Holdings Limited 1,2  Beneficial owner/
AR B R A ] Interest of a
controlled corporation
EnaN/
R EEER
Employees’ Shareholding 1,3 Interest of controlled

Society of Legend Holdings
Limited
BB AR A RIS

corporations
R EE R

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

RROEE2FR

BEXPRBEEN R_EELF=A=1t—"R ARAZES
RATHAEE R E 2 BEABERAR R S E A8 EE
(E&ALBHRAEGEOIEXVED) 2 ikt 1R S EEET
BEAIREES L EGROIEXVEETRESD B /A MG AN AR
KB P (BRERIEES RGO 2 BRI T REHEE XK
WA 2 R FORR) HALARRARERE S T
EBIEXVEPE 352517 8 2 B MR BEEFRIRME RN
B MM ZX P 2 R SRR

RZZZLF=A=1+—R REARAEEFRAE KRS
XVEDEE336{E MFE 2 B ToAL GEARRZE
FRITRAEER) NAR R Z B RAABR O %A 5 2 s

RokR:

Percentage

of aggregate

holding of long /

Long position Short position short positions
held in shares

REROER XA

held in shares in shares (%)
BAE/KREH
FREZBHLL(%)
(Note 5) (FffzE5)

274,633,072/ = 47.60/-
141,368,642
416,001,714 = 47.60/-



Name

=L

General Atlantic Partners

(Bermuda), L.P.

GAP Coinvestment Partners I, L.P.

GapStar, LLC

GAP (Bermuda) Limited

General Atlantic LLC

Capacity
54

Beneficial owner/
Interests of persons
acting in concert
BEmEAAN
—BITBA L =

Beneficial owner/
Interests of persons
acting in concert
BaERAN/
—BITBAL R

Beneficial owner/
Interests of persons
acting in concert
BaERAN/
—BITBAL =

Interest of a

controlled corporation/
Interests of persons
acting in concert

R EE R/
—BITBAL 2=

Interest of a

controlled corporation/
Interests of persons
acting in concert

R EEE R/
—BITRA L 2R

Long position
held in shares

RROER2HR

96,357,938/
20,647,062

13,330,702/
103,674,298

7,316,360/
109,688,640

96,357,938/
20,647,062

7,316,360/
109,688,640

Report of

the Directors

Short position
held in shares

RROER KR

EEERS

Percentage

of aggregate
holding of long /
short positions

in shares (%)
HE/RREH
EREZHHL(%)
(Note 5) (Fi7E5)

13.39/-

13.39/-

13.39/-

13.39/-

13.39/-
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Notes:

Directors
mE

The English names “Legend Holdings Limited” and “Employees’ Shareholding Society
of Legend Holdings Limited” are direct transliterations of their Chinese registered
names “BEA8IEAX B BR A R)” and “BEASIERR B BR A Rk TS respectively.

141,368,642 shares were held by Right Lane Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
and a controlled corporation of Legend Holdings Limited, and therefore Legend
Holdings Limited was deemed to be interested in such shares by virtue of the SFO.

Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holdings Limited was the controlling
shareholder of Legend Holdings Limited and was therefore deemed to be interested
in the 416,001,714 shares in which Legend Holdings Limited was interested.

GAP (Bermuda) Limited is the general partner of General Atlantic Partners (Bermuda),
L.P., and General Atlantic LLC (“GA LLC’) is the sole member of GapStar, LLC. The
individuals who are the Managing Directors of GA LLC are also the executive officers
and directors of GAP (Bermuda) Limited. In addition, the general partners of GAP
Coinvestment Partners I, L.P. are also Managing Directors of GA LLC.

The percentage of aggregate holding of long/short positions in shares were calculated
on the basis of 874,039,081 shares of the Company in issue at 31 March 2007.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2007, no other interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

During the year under review, the Group entered into the following connected

transactions which are of a regular and continuing nature and in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange:

On 27 March 2006, the Company announced (inter alia) that two
agreements both dated 27 March 2006 and both with a term of three
years commencing on 9 June 2006 were entered into between the
Company and Lenovo Group Limited (“Lenovo”), the details of which
are described below:

(@ a supplemental master sales agreement for the purpose of
regulating the Sales Arrangements, being the sales of IT
products and the provision of services by the Group to Lenovo
and/or its subsidiaries (“Lenovo Group”); and

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

G2

1. H 48 [Legend Holdings Limited] % [Employees’
Shareholding Society of Legend Holdings Limited] 755
B‘JEE%EEI&%%EEZEPX%%W% BIERARAR R
(AR AR AR THRR® | -

2. 141,368,642 015 Ty B BIR IR B R A ) 2 2 B A M
BARRZEEZEEBAERARFE Bt REEHFR
HI KM B AR AR A IR A R R Ve A % SRS 2 4

3. AR IEAR A IR A BB TR 2 OB IR AR B PR A B 2 4%
RS Eit - AR (E G 416,001, 714RA% 1D 2 #Eas -
ZERBIBIERBR ARG RS ZRMD-

4. GAP (Bermuda) Limited&General Atlantic Partners
(Bermuda), L.P.Z —f&&# A K General Atlantic LLC
(TGA LLCI)%& GapStar, LLC Z M —&H - BHGA LLC
BEEEIR 2 AT TVBGAP (Bermuda) Limited 2 1TEA
8 RE = k5 GAP Coinvestment Partners Il, L.P. Z
—MREBAINACA LLCZESFBLIE-

5. HE/ KREEBREZ AN NEARAR =TT L
F=R=1+—HZB#1Ti%1H874,039,081 ik HEAE:T
Ho

B EXFEEEIN RZETEF=A=+—H BEREKQF]

B& 15 s AR (D 2 b iR s A B B SR RIEEF R E

1&BIEXVERE336IKMIFE 2 B s ftiA e

MAFRE RN P LR A T AR EETT
BR-REBERTEHRSEENEERS:

TEALEERA

ERNF=A=Z1++tB ARAEM (EREHE)
B EAR AR ([BE]) BEFFTMM A
gx\i A=Z+tB U=ZZEZTRFRAN
==

Y= F 2 e HeFBEImT

@) HABHERRAEE HELH BIAREE
HWETHAR SHENBRA ([HEE
B ) ITER WIRHRS: &



(b) a supplemental master purchases agreement for the purpose
of regulating (i) the Purchases Arrangements, being the
purchases by the Group from the Lenovo Group of computers
and other related IT products of certain Lenovo brands and
the provision of services by the Lenovo Group to the Group
and (i) the IBM Purchases Transactions, being the purchases
of the IBM products together with the warranty and post-
warranty services and the provision of services (including
upgrade services) by the Group from Lenovo Group.

Legend Holdings Limited (“Legend”) is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of being a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Lenovo is an associate of Legend by virtue of Legend being its
controlling shareholder, and therefore Lenovo and any of its associates
are regarded as connected persons of the Company under the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange. A director of the Company is also a
director of Lenovo.

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the aggregate amount of the sales
by the Group to Lenovo Group was HK$44,822,000 and the aggregate
amount of the purchases by the Group from Lenovo Group was
HK$1,142,083,000.

On 10 January 2005, the Company announced that DGT Information
Systems Limited (“DGT”), a company owned as to 55% by the
Company, 25% by GE Capital Mauritius Equity Investment (“GE”) and
20% by TIS Inc. (“TIS”), entered into a master agreement with GE
dated 31 December 2004 for the purpose of regulating the transactions
relating to the provision of software development, applications
outsourcing, IT support and other related professional services by DGT
and its subsidiaries to GE and/or its associates (“GE Transactions”).

DGT also entered into a master agreement with TIS dated 31 December
2004 for the purpose of regulating the transactions relating to the
provision of software development, applications outsourcing, IT support
and other related professional services by DGT and its subsidiaries to
TIS and/or its associates (“TIS Transactions”).

As GE and TIS are each a substantial shareholder of DGT, GE, TIS
and their respective associates are regarded as connected persons of
the Company under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

For the year ended 31 March 2007, the aggregate amount of the GE
Transactions was HK$10,723,000 and the aggregate amount of the
TIS Transactions was HK$33,438,000.

Report of
the Directors

EEERS

(o) TETTHEIRIB e PABEE () SRAE 20 B AR
B AR S B RS 5 TH A e 2 IS R ABRE
I T 7 o K% B A8 22 B () A 5= B R A AR S I (i)
IBMERAERS 5 - BN 7K 5 [ [m] B A8 £ B R RS 1IBM
FE B RV AR E I AR EA 14 PR TS IR IR AR 755
(BREFBRIRR) -

ARER AR A (TH AR ) RA QR 2 AR
R ML IRAA AR 2 BE A LB AR R A8 2 4%
PR AR ER - B AR R B AR 2 BV BB - R MEARIER BB 22 P
EFRRAN B R AT R A AR A AR R 2
BAT - ARBz—MEEMARBEZES.

HE-ZZT+HF=-A=1+—HULFE F£EHET
BB B 2 S A RE44,822,0007T K AN B A8
MEEBFE 2 4S8 AB1,142,083,0007T

RZZZRF— A+ B AARSMSMNEIERAY
HAERAR (EMETBRAEM])  —RABBEAR
AI#EH55% * GE Capital Mauritius Equity Investment
([GE]) #H25% * KTIS Inc. ([TIS]) #H20% 2 A
A HGEEFTRHA—STNF+_A=1T—HZIE
i LB A RSNSERRR I RENB AR
MIGER, St E e AR5 AN T
XEREMBAERERSE (GERS]) -

INEAS B A TR ETISER B R -T2 F +
Z A=+ HZERGE AREBRMeMNEIERA
REREMBARMTISR,SEBEATRHER G
FEE - AR INE I T SR R E A AR B 3 3 AR 7S
(IMsx%1) -

RIE EHRA BRGERTISH Aid ) &5 8 B & 14
ZEBRE GE  TIShFEER B 2HEALHRR AN
RNRIZBEANT

BE_TTEF-A=1—RLFE CEXZZH#T

B|AREH10,723,0007T RTISR P 2 B2 BREBE
33,438,0007T°
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The above continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
directors of the Company (including the independent non-executive directors).
The independent non-executive directors have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions:

(@ have received the approval of the board of directors of the Company;
(b) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;
() have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing the transactions; and

(d) have not exceeded their respective caps disclosed in the
announcements dated 10 January 2005 and 27 March 2006.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2007 are disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.

The following connected transactions are of a regular and continuing nature
and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group under the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange subsequent to the balance sheet date:

1. On 23 January 2007, the Company announced that DGT entered into
supplemental agreements with GE and TIS respectively both dated 22
January 2007 and both with a term of three years commencing on 1
April 2007 to 31 March 2010.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07
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During the year, no charitable and other donations were made by the Group
(2006: Nil).

The aggregate percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% (2006: less than 30%) of the Group’s total
turnover for the year.

The aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers was approximately 46% (2006: approximately 43%) of the Group’s
total purchases and the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier was approximately 14% (2006: approximately 12%) for the
year.

None of the directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers or
suppliers noted above.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2007 of
the Group were audited by Messrs. Ernst & Young.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Messrs. Ernst &
Young will retire but, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment,
and accordingly a resolution will be proposed to re-appoint Messrs. Ernst &
Young as the auditors of the Company.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the ~ ANAFRIBEARER A RESEENRMNEER EEER
knowledge of the directors, the directors confirm that the Company has RQARIRZ=ZZZELF=A=+—HILZFERDERF EHEA
maintained the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules during — #7E THRIEAREFRE

the year ended 31 March 2007.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
RREFS

LI Qin =&
Chairman /&

Hong Kong, 12 July 2007
B ZEELFLA+=H
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Independent Auditors’ Report
TN B AR

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

Ak & 3t FOF KA

=
To the shareholders of Digital China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Digital China Holdings Limited set
out on pages 61 to 161, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

BHMNBRERARATNZERR
(RERZEZMA T2 BRAA])

AEZERED AT RSHE [54F1) ) EF B M BB IER AR A RE
RECITEEF161ANFBHRR HHBRREEN 2Tt
FZA=Z+—ENGRREABRRARAEABRESRS
ZALFENGERGER GARAEPRRGERERE
T AR T EGTBRME R AR

ERRESAAARBEEESHIASHMN(ERUBTIRS
A RAEBRRUED) 2 HBER TR B EEMA S35
BREWBERET - BLEERER Bk EERYBRER
B EE AR RAARE R A EES] AEM FRERTE
BN FF S SR B B R EE AR R IR AE R IR E M
SRBOR ARIRIEREE R B SRR

HPINEERBRERMNEREZEVBRRELER M
IS EBEERE NN\ —F(RAVR) FNTIRERDHER
RAmS ML EEM B & BB TR ARENAREE
EMATARIARRE.

HMERBEEESHMASRANKEEBREN WHRTH
TENZ B LR BRI FVE TREFERRD WARE RHTT
B NEMESSIEHENENHFRREC T FEEMNEASA
ARER
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2007 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Zm[ﬂ‘/g

Ernst & Young

RKGETRER

Certified Public Accountants
HESEED

18/F., Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong
EETFRSRASHER ST OB+ g

12 July 2007
—TE+F+A+=A
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Consolidated Income Statement

w/\ H&: :%%
Year ended 31 March 2007

HE-TFLE=A=t—ALEE

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income and gains

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses, net

Total operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of:
Jointly-controlled entities
Associates

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Tax
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

DIVIDENDS - Proposed final

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
Basic

Diluted

LN

HEMRA

E7

HAp A R zs

BB A
(R THIA
HEEH 2

44
HF%Z\\_J

BRBE AR
B

RE T
FER:

SR AREER
SRR R

RE — ERAK

BAREBERKRRE
s ERER

AR

Al ZE N R EE

2007

—EELF

Notes HK$°000
HiaE EBEF T
5} 25,418,398

(23,569,405)

1,848,993

5 219,938

(1,105,296)

(318,635)

(230,263)

6 (1,654,194)

8 (146,406)

(20,882)
(5,505)

7 241,944

11 (40,631)

201,313

12 208,429

(7,116)

201,313

13 72,370

14

2006
—ETRF
HK$’000
BT
19,864,897
(18,459,683)
1,405,214
122,669
(810,575)
(267,471)
(74,851)
(1,152,897)

(95,851)

(5,171)
(4,383)

269,581

(20,970)

248,611

251,917

(3,306)

248,611

86,693

23.92 HK centsi&fll  29.19 HK cents/&1ll

23.78 HK centsi&{ll  29.07 HK centsi& Il
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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31 March 2007
—ZET+F=R=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties

Prepaid land premiums

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in jointly-controlled entities
Interests in associates
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Non-current asset classified as held for sale
Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals

Tax payable

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07
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Notes

ffeE

15
16
17
18
19
22
23
24
25

26
28

29

30

31

32

32

2007
—gEtE
HK$’000
BT

337,621
208,226
13,547
19,087
3,644
22,970
31,611
25,038

661,744

1,683,630
2,852,404
957,146
717,455

6,210,635
12,681

6,223,316

2,667,444
975,330
31,807
633,536

4,308,117
1,915,199

2,576,943

603,697
603,697

1,973,246

2006
ZETRF
HK$’000
BT

420,168
184,293
13,485
28,265
39,324
24,526
36,453
32,944
31,150

810,608

1,667,027
2,684,673
567,288
297,768

5,016,756

5,016,756

2,065,757
741,563
17,991
1,206,185

4,021,496
995,260

1,805,868

1,805,868



EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent

Issued capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Minority interests

Total equity

LI Qin =&
Chairman /&

B
& A R IRR B AR

EEITRAR

Gl
BRARHI S
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HREEERER

31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
HiaE BT T BT T
59 87,404 86,693
35(a) 1,801,579 1,613,473
13 72,370 86,693
1,961,353 1,786,859
11,893 19,009
1,973,246 1,805,868
GUO Wei 85
Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR

Year ended 31 March 2007

RE-FTLF=A=1—

At 1 April 2005

Exchange realignment and net gain
recognised directly in equity for
the year

Profit for the year

Total income and expense
for the year
Exercise of share options
Equity-settled share option
arrangements
Capital injection from minority
shareholders of a subsidiary
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Final 2005 dividend
Proposed final 2006
dividend
Transfer to reserve funds
Transfer to capital reserve

At 31 March 2006

At 1 April 2006

Exchange realignment and
net gain recognised directly
in equity for the year

Profit for the year

Total income and expense
for the year

Exercise of share options

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Final 2006 dividend

Proposed final 2007
dividend

Transfer to reserve funds

At 31 March 2007

*

/ N\ /g

Z_Z%b%%

HIEFE

Notes

Kzt

R=FRRFMA—R
AEREN BEREER
MR iR 2 e F B

AR

FEEBRARRZ

TR AR 33
VAR AR S+t 2 B A HE
ZH 34
—FM B R R D BARR
ZEEER
uﬂz&% R E D
ﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬁé

TR

36(a)

R

REARRS 13
BREREES

R=ZRXFMA—RA
AERENBEREER
RERTER 2 Wk B R

AR

AEREBARX

rd e 53]
BARSEA5 3% 1+t 2 B AR ATE

ZH 34
TRERPRS
HR-TT+F

REABRS 13
BREREED

R-BBLF
=A=t-8

Issued
capital
BRI
BAE
HK$'000
BT

86,126

86,693

86,693

87,404
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Share
premium
account
B3
SR
HK$'000
BT

294,683

305,334

305,334

319,572*

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Employee
share-based

Capital compensation

reserve

BEARGE
HK$’000
BT

623,689

1,645

625,334

625,334

625,334*

reserve
BABHR 32
HERZ
k2t
HK$’000
BETFT

37,595

50,458

50,458

(498)

6,309

56,269*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately *
HK$1,801,579,000 (2006: HK$1,613,473,000) in the consolidated balance sheet.

BATRRALE
Exchange
Reserve fluctuation Retained
funds reserve profits
EXRD

HmEe i REF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BEFT BEFT
45,668 640 416,666
= 5,794 -

- - 251917

= 5794 251,917

- - (86,693)
8,094 - (8,094)
- - (1,645)
53,762* 6,434°  572,151*

53,762 6,434 572,151
- 31,998 -

- - 208,429

- 31,998 208,429

= = (72,370)
10,240 - (10,240)
64,002 38,432¢  697,970*

%L E A IRAE K

IRA

R

Proposed
final
dividend

.33
REBE
HK$’000
BT

73,465

(73,465)

86,693

86,693

86,693

(86,693)

72,370

72,370

Minority
Total interests

H

e B
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT AT
1,678,532 9,072
5,794 -
251,917 (3,306)
257,711 (3,306)
11,218 =
12,863 =

= 1,905

- 10,438

(73,465) =
1,786,859 19,009
1,786,859 19,009
31,998 -
208,429 (7,116)
240,427 (7,116)
14,451 -
6,309 =
(86,693) =
1,961,353 11,893

Total
equity

WA
HK$’000
BT

1,688,504

5,794
248,611

254,405
11,218

12,863
1,905

10,438
(73,465)

1,805,868

1,805,868

31,998
201,313

233,311
14,451

6,309
(86,693)

1,973,246

EEARRTZEARBOE

#1,801,579,0007T (ZZ T/ F : #11,613,473,000

JT)



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

E/% v //IL:%%

Year ended 31 March 2007
HE-ZT+F=A=1+—HILFE

/\\/ \

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profits and losses of
jointly-controlled entities and associates
Bank interest income
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of non-current asset classified
as held for sale
Gain on disposal of intangible assets
Fair value gains on investment properties, net
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums
Impairment of goodwiill
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment of intangible assets
Impairment of available-for-sale investments
Equity-settled share option expenses

Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and bills receivables
Increase in prepayments, deposits and

other receivables
Decrease in an amount due from an associate
Decrease in an amount due to an associate
Increase in trade and bills payables
Increase in other payables and accruals
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

The People’s Republic of China
corporate income tax paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

REXBHBRERE
B A A A
LA T BIEMEZ FHE:
BE KA
FEAE AR DR R
BN E N R &R
RITHSMA
HE Y S ek
ZEE
HEREREZIFRDEE
ZWzs
REELEENS
REMEZ A HEAKEFE
e
Taft LA S # 8
EERE
B EEH#H
BEERE
AHEEZRERE
PARS A7 2 A5 2 BB AR Bl S2

FEEM
FEUK B 55 0 31 K% B MK = 45 3
B SOE S R E A ERER

JRE Wi — FeBgg 8 X R RIEDR
JEAS —FBg & X R RIER
FER 5 IR K FE N SR A3 hO
H Ao 508 & e B R N
PE BB 2 RE R

EHAE
EFTEARLMBE B EHAEH

R EIEATSIR S R

TRIZ N

Notes

HfeE

2007
—2EtHF
HK$’000
BETFT

241,944

146,406

26,387
(7,035)

4,142

(21,500)
(1,456)
64,197
352
28,566
5,019
16,259
2,425
6,309

512,015

(116,603)
(267,731)

(389,858)

611,687
233,767
557

583,834
7,035

(20,306)

570,563

2006
ZEETRF
HK$’000
BEFT

269,581

95,851

9,654
(4,468)

2,313

(3,196)
(3,487)
(7,368)
56,950
162
12,894
7,255
19,781

12,863

468,685

(283,354)
(467,744)

(117,483)
5,110
(1,882)
383,124
161,337
(13,551)

134,242
4,468

(9,011)

129,699
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER
Year ended 31 March 2007
BE_TZ+HF=-A=1+—RHLFE

Net cash inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of non-current
asset classified as held for sale

Additions to intangible assets

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Investments in jointly-controlled entities

Investments in associates

Return of capital from associates

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares

Capital injected by minority shareholders

New bank loans

Repayment of bank and other loans

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash outflow from financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
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Notes

ffeE

15

19
36(a)

33

29

2007
—gEtE
HK$’000
BT

570,563

(81,111)

440

112,841

(4,703)

(1,067)

26,400

14,451

7,880,917
(7,854,988)
(146,406)
(86,693)

(192,719)

404,244
297,768
15,443

717,455

717,455

2006
ZETRF
HK$’000
BT

129,699

(227,260)
241

84,249
(50,760)
(33,7083)

(8,270)
(5,383)
1,890

(238,996)

11,218
1,905
5,980,393
(5,878,139)
(95,851)
(73,465)

(563,939)

(163,236)
453,286
7,718

297,768

297,768



Balance Sheet
BEE8E

N

31 March 2007
—ZET+F=R=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Due from subsidiaries

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Due to subsidiaries

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

LI Qin =&
Chairman /&

FRBEE
UE RIS
KRB AR ZRE

hBEE

BN FOR R K E A YRR

JRE W Bt /B 2 R R IR
HE MIBITHER

RBARE
HAO N RRRTRRE M
JEAST BB X R R IA

RBEERE
BEFE
Rz
BEEITRA
fFEf
BORARHIR R

R

Notes

HfeE

15
20

21
29

21

33
35(b)
13

2007
—2EtHF
HK$’000
BETFT

479
749,166

749,645

1,737
1,017,794
913

1,020,444

7,138
430,153

437,291

583,153

1,332,798

87,404
1,173,024
72,370

1,332,798

GUO Wei 385
Director &%

2006
—TEAE

— ==

HK$'000
BETIT

1,120
743,702

744,822

1,971
561,211
26,606

589,788

5,424
18,778

24,202

565,586

1,310,408

86,693
1,137,022
86,693

1,310,408
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Notes to Financial Statements

e eyl N

31 March 2007
—ERLF=A=1—H

Digital China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The head office and principal place of business of
the Company is located at Suite 2008, 20/F., Devon House, Taikoo Place,
979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal activities:

. distribution of general information technology (“IT”) products

o distribution of systems products and provision of related value-added
services

. provision of systems integration, application software development,

consultancy and training, etc..

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which also include Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, which have been measured at
fair value and non-current asset held for sale, which is stated at the lower of
its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell as further explained in note
2.4. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2007. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. This method involves allocating the cost of the business
combinations to the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not held by
the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements. Except for in certain cases,
giving rise to new and revised accounting policies and additional disclosures,
the adoption of these new and revised standards and interpretation has had
no material effect on these financial statements.

HKAS 21 Amendment

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
Financial Guarantee Contracts

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast
Intragroup Transactions

HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease
HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under

HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

The principal changes in accounting policies are as follows:

Upon the adoption of the HKAS 21 Amendment regarding a net investment in
a foreign operation, all exchange differences arising from a monetary item that
forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
in a separate component of equity in the consolidated financial statements
irrespective of the currency in which the monetary item is denominated. This
change has had no material impact on these financial statements as at 31
March 2007 or 31 March 2006.

(i) Amendment for financial guarantee contracts

This amendment has revised the scope of HKAS 39 to require financial
guarantee contracts issued that are not considered insurance contracts, to
be recognised initially at fair value and to be remeasured at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS
18 Revenue. The adoption of this amendment has had no material impact on
these financial statements.

(ii) Amendment for the fair value option

This amendment has changed the definition of a financial instrument classified
as fair value through profit or loss and has restricted the use of the option to
designate any financial asset or any financial liability to be measured at fair
value through the income statement. The Group had not previously used this
option, and hence the amendment has had no effect on the financial
statements.
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(iif) Amendment for cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup
transactions

This amendment has revised HKAS 39 to permit the foreign currency risk of a
highly probable intragroup forecast transaction to qualify as a hedged item in
a cash flow hedge, provided that the transaction is denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity entering into that transaction
and that the foreign currency risk will affect the consolidated income statement.
As the Group currently has no such transactions, the amendment has had no
effect on these financial statements.

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 April 2006, which provides
guidance in determining whether arrangements contain a lease to which lease
accounting must be applied. This interpretation has had no material impact
on these financial statements.

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 April 2006, which provides
guidance on how to apply the requirements of HKAS 29 in a reporting period
in which an entity identifies the existence of hyperinflation in the economy of
its functional currency when that economy was not hyperinflationary in the
prior period, causing the entity to restate its financial statements in accordance
with HKAS 29. This interpretation has had no material impact on these financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKAS 1 Amendment
HKAS 23 (Revised)

Capital Disclosures
Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

K(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
HK(FRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions
HK(FRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2007. The revised standard will affect the disclosures about
qualitative information about the Group’s objectives, policies and processes
for managing capital; quantitative data about what the Company regards as
capital; and compliance with any capital requirements and the consequences
of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2007. This standard requires disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the significance of the Group’s financial instruments
and the nature and extent of risks arising from those financial instruments.

HKFRS 8 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009. This standard requires the disclosure of information about the operating
segments of the Group, the products and services provided by the segments,
the geographical areas in which the Group operates, and revenues from the
Group’s major customers. This standard will supersede HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting.
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HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, HK(IFRIC)-Int 10, HK(IFRIC)-Int 11, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 12 and HKAS 23 (Revised) shall be applied for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 May 2006, 1 June 2006, 1 November 2006, 1 March 2007, 1
January 2008 and 1 January 2009, respectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these
new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far, it has concluded that
while the adoption of the HKAS 1 Amendment, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 8 may
result in new or amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company
controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income statement
to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
company operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other
parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital
contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the joint venture and
the basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The
profits and losses from the joint venture’s operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.
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Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

A joint venture is treated as:

(@)

a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or indirectly,
over the joint venture;

a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have unilateral control,
but has joint control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint control, but
holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint
venture company’s registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39, if
the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint
venture’s registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a
position to exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to joint control, resulting

in none of the participating parties having unilateral control over the economic
activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-
controlled entities is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled
entities are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
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An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity, in
which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates
is included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
as an asset, initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.
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For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated:

. represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes; and

. is not larger than a segment based on either the Group’s primary or
the Group’s secondary reporting format determined in accordance with
HKAS 14 Segment Reporting.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwiill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing
for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’'s value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, however not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

fWEHBEHIRERR REAREREE (FE RERAE
E SREE RAMENBERN ETEFRENR S
At EEZ RO - BRIFRPEEEL 2R RE TS
YREMEESEEAAMELEZRSRE (FUBERT 7
O CRREEMB RS ELENERE) RRBEZ K
OERREESREELEN 2ERBELEQAFEBRS
EXFzReETE WRERNEEETE-

BERKEREE 2 IREEBRRE AT EER ) T AR ¥
HEREER DARRAMRRAERGIRARRERE R
B MZBRERRERTSHSEEEI A RZBEEL
FrARRORERRTINEEHEANEKmRNG-

AEEENESERE A NTEREEEANTRBREFCOE
RZMEBRKEETBFEXE R B EAIZSENR Alg
A EEZAIREEBECDER 2 —REAE FFERIN RE
1BRENETEZE E R EERER 2 Bt A E e
A B L2 RN GBIBMEEN T F L ERERRERKE
A E 2 IRMEE (R EETE, #isH) < RERK Z B E TR
ELHEARAKREK-

MNBESERAR AR F3 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, (i)
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or (jii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in
(a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides
with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (g); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the

employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.
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Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When an
item of property, plant and machinery is classified as held for sale or when it is
part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of

each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its

estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms or 2% to 5%,
whichever is shorter

Over the lease terms or 20% to 33%,
whichever is shorter

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

Leasehold improvements

Office equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately.
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Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other fixed assets under
construction or installation, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
testing during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or investment
properties when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
interest under an operating lease for property which would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties
are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in the income statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

When the Group completes the construction or development of a self-
constructed investment property, any difference between the fair value of the
property at the completion date and its previous carrying amount is recognised
in the income statement.
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Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or
disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment properties,
deferred tax assets and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
balance sheet date.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and
deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete
the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised using the unit-of-sale method, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production, with an amortisation
period limited to two years.
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Licences
Licences are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. When the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group considers whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it. The
embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract which is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss when the analysis shows that the
economic characteristics and risks of embedded derivatives are not closely
related to those of the host contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after initial

recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation
at the balance sheet date.
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All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in unlisted
equity securities that are designated as available for sale or are not classified
as loans and receivables. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is included in the income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such technigues include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing
models.
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The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group
is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there
is objective evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the
amounts due under the original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of
the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired
debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the income
statement, is transferred from equity to the income statement. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the income statement.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but
has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to
a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased
option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the
transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a
written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an
asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and
the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are initially stated at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.
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Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are accounted for as
financial liabilities. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially at its
fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial guarantee contract, except when such contract is
recognised at fair value through the income statement. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency
contracts to manage its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gain or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to the income statement.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amounts and appropriate
amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive payments. Contract costs
incurred comprise equipment and material costs, subcontracting costs, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the proportion of work
completed to date to the estimated total work of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by
management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from
contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to
contract customers.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances comprise

cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in
the income statement, or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in
the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences
at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable

right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Government grants are recognised at their fair value when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis
to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) contract revenue, on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Contract accounting” above;

(©) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms; and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).
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Share-based payment transactions (cont’d)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value
is determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of
which are given in note 34 to the financial statements. In valuing equity-settled
transactions, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company (“market
conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfiled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each balance
sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for
awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an
expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, which increases the total fair value
of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on
the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date that
it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.
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Share-based payment transactions (cont’d)
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution
in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect of
equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards
granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1 April 2005 and to
those granted on or after 1 April 2005.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are partially refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland of
the People’s Republic of China (“Mainland China”) are required to participate
in an central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the participating employees’
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation
of retained profits within the equity section of the balance sheet, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.
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These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to
the income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, jointly-controlled
entities and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date and, their income statements are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in
equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has
made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined that it retains all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determined whether a property qualifies as an investment property
and has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group
accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment assessment for trade receivables

The policy for impairment assessment for trade receivables of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of trade receivables
and on the judgement of management. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
impairment may be required.

Provision for obsolete inventories

Management reviews the aging analysis of inventories of the Group at each
balance sheet date, and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review at each balance sheet date and makes provision for obsolete
items.

Fair value of investment properties

As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements, investment properties are
revalued at the balance sheet date on an open market, existing use basis by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the judgement, information from current prices in
an active market for similar properties is considered and assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the balance sheet date are
used.
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Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. More details are given in note
18 to the financial statements.

Impairment of intangible assets — Deferred development costs

The Group determines whether an intangible asset is impaired where an
indication of impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the intangible asset. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the intangible assets and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred tax assets based on the
enacted or substantially enacted tax rates and laws and its best knowledge of
profit projections of the Group for the coming years during which the deferred
tax assets are expected to be utilised. Management reviews the assumptions
and profit projections at each balance sheet date.
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Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various regions. As a result of the fact
that certain matters relating to the income taxes have not been confirmed by
the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgements based on currently
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related polices are required in
determining the provision of income taxes to be made. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters are different from the amounts originally recorded,
the differences will impact the income tax and tax provisions in the period in
which the differences realise.

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary segment
reporting basis, by business segment. In determining the Group’s geographical
segments, revenues are attributed to the segments based on the location of
the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location
of the assets. No geographical segment information is presented as over 90%
of the Group’s customers and operations are located in Mainland China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations and the products and services they
provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business segments. Summary
details of the business segments are as follows:

(@) the “Distribution” segment engages in the distribution of general IT
products which consist of notebook computers, desktop computers,
PC servers, data projectors, peripherals, accessories and consumer
IT products;

(b) the “Systems” segment engages in the distribution of systems products
which consist of Unix servers, networking products, storage products
and packaged software, as well as the provision of related value-added
services; and

(c) the “Services” segment engages in the provision of systems integration,
application software development, consultancy and training, etc..
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The following tables present revenue, profit and certain asset, liability and
expenditure information for the Group’s business segments for the years ended

31 March 2007 and 2006.

Group

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers

Segment gross profit

Segment results

Interest income, unallocated
revenue and gains

Unallocated expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of:

Jointly-controlled entities
Associates

Profit before tax

Tax

Profit for the year

SHUA
HETHINER

2 EBER
BB

FEWA KD
L ONL &
RO
BAERA
i3RI ol
A R
HEEHI R

YN
BT A )
B

AELHM

Distribution
b |

2007 2006
—EEBtE ZTTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYTFT EETFT
14,727,993 11,616,453
705,974 544,729
267,785 234,155
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TREJAEERE_TTLFR_FETRF=-_A=1+—H
IFEFEEBAR 22BN GwFRETEE REREREH-

rEE
Systems Services Consolidated
£ BR# RE

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
—E2LF —TTRF ZBBLF —ZTTRF ZBTLFE —TITRF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT E¥EFT BT  EB¥FrT  BETT
7,351,562 5,679,594 3,338,843 2,568,850 25,418,398 19,864,897
698,968 506,770 444,051 353,715 1,848,993 1,405,214
207,614 181,192 (24,415) 50,344 450,984 465,691
187,358 92,300
(223,605)  (183,005)
(146,406) (95,851)
- - (20,882) (5,171) (20,882) (5,171)
- - (5,505) (4,383) (5,505) (4,383)

241,944 269,581
(40,631) (20,970)

201,313 248,611
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Group

Assets and liabilities

Segment assets

Interests in jointly-controlled
entities

Interests in associates

Non-current asset classified
as held for sale

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Other segment information:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Unallocated amounts

Capital expenditure
Unallocated amounts

Amortisation of intangible
assets

Amortisation of prepaid
land premiums
— Unallocated

Impairment and write off of
doubtful trade receivables

Provisions/(reversal of
provisions) and
write-off of obsolete
inventories

Impairment of intangible
assets

Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of
available-for-sale
investments

BEEREE
DEERE
PSR
2R
NN P 3
RAERFEZ
FRBEE
ROKEARE

mEE

HittpBMEH:
M- BB K

Rz iTE
ROBEER

EARFI
ROBER

B AERE
FEf L iE S 8
—RDH
FEUE ZiRFRIR
B R
REFERE

(B AR E) R

BVEAERE
PERE

AHHEZRERE

Distribution
|

2007 2006
—E2tEF —_TITRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYTFT EETFT
2,163,771 1,889,565
1,672,058 1,189,546
7,293 7,176
11,985 6,888
10,492 1,548
2,310 876
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Systems

Y

2007 2006
—E2tEF —TTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BYFT BETT
1,717,675 1,587,625
1,006,394 826,899
8,114 7,694
6,602 19,148
4,481 4,893
26,802 23,858
16,848 (25,203)
3,510 12,475

Services
BR A&

2007 2006
—B2TtFE —TTRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
1,394,486 1,221,270
3,644 24,526
22,970 36,453
12,681 -
798,247 663,320
14,504 11,002
43,640 50,662
538 2,362
27,316 13,258
9,072 1,335
12,749 7,306
28,566 12,894
2,425 -

Consolidated

RE

2007
—gTLE
HK$’000
BEFT
5,275,932

3,644
22,970

12,681
1,569,833

6,885,060

3,476,699
1,435,115

4,911,814

29,911
34,286

64,197

62,227
18,884

81,111

5,019

352

64,610

28,230

16,259
28,566

2,425

2006

—EEREF

HK$'000
BT

4,698,460

24,526
36,453

1,067,925

5,827,364

2,679,765
1,341,731

4,021,496

25,872
31,078

56,950

76,698
201,322

278,020

7,255

162

38,664

(22,992)

19,781
12,894



Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the invoiced value of
goods sold and services rendered to customers, net of business tax, value-

added tax and government surcharges, and after allowances for goods returned

and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Revenue

Other income
Government grants (note)
Bank interest income
Gross rental income
Others

Gains

Fair value gains on investment properties, net

Gain on disposal of non-current asset classified
as held for sale

Gain on forward foreign exchange contracts

Foreign exchange differences, net

Gain on disposal of intangible assets

Note:

Various government grants have been received for the sale of self-developed software

LN

Hibg A

AT HBRE (i)
RITHEHA
HHETWA
HAt

g

BREWMEZ A HEENREFRE
HERARFEZIFRE
BEZ WS

EMINES K2 ek

SNEF B

BREELEENS

et -

approved by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) tax authority, the development
of software in Mainland China, and the investment in specific provinces in Mainland
China. The government grants received for the investment in specific provinces in
Mainland China were recognised upon the receipt of the grants, whereas those
received for the sale of self-developed software approved by the PRC tax authority
and the development of software in Mainland China were recognised upon the sale
of the approved self-developed software and the completion of the development of
the related software, respectively. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

relating to these grants.
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Group
rEH
2007 2006
A —ETRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hfat BEFT BT
25,418,398 19,864,897
36,830 26,084
7,035 4,468
34,431 1,246
9,205 9,045
87,501 40,843
16 1,456 7,368
15 21,500 3,196
- 2,979
7 109,481 64,796
- 3,487
132,437 81,826
219,938 122,669
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BOETIRE MUECE T B R - EREB R ER
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B A BeE PR A T IR 2 #B - R B S S SRR 2 B
FIRE M R ek P AR BN TR TERR % S BA AR R
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An analysis of total operating expenses by nature is as follows: BREEBAUE 2 EEERQEITET:
Group
TEE
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Selling expenses HEBR 140,205 106,787
Promotion and advertising expenses HEEREEER 149,810 97,241
Staff costs included in operating expenses HINEEBR 2 BT
(including directors’ remuneration) (BIEEEM2) 742,162 559,136
Other expenses HEiERH 622,017 389,733
1,654,194 1,152,897
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The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums
Impairment of goodwill*
Research and development cost
Amortisation of intangible assets™
Impairment of intangible assets*
Impairment of available-for-sale investments*®
Minimum lease payments under operating leases
in respect of land and buildings
Auditors’ remuneration
Employee benefits expense (including directors’
remuneration (note 9)):
Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share option expenses
Pension scheme contributions***
Other benefits

Provisions/(reversal of provisions) and write-off
of obsolete inventories™

Write-off of other receivables*

Impairment and write-off of doubtful trade
receivables*

Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and
maintenance) arising on rental-earning
investment properties

Net rental income

Foreign exchange differences, net

ERFEERAN
e
TEA b FE &
EEEAEN
9T K B A AR
A B B
A ERE
A HHE ZRERE"
THRIEFZ
HELEHEERS
BT &
REEMAXL (B
B¢ (A1429))
TERF®
LARRAD 321+ 2 B AR i B <2
RKSHBIERC
H b1 F

REFTERRB (BERE)
Ko
H A W R IR

FEWE 5 IR SRR MR E B 8

HEYE BB RREHZER

ARBEEREYEN

BERKLER (BREENRE)

THEFRA
SN 5 R
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Notes
Hfat

15
17
18

19
19
24

31 March 2007

—EEH+F=HA=+—H

AEBZBBRATANBELMEG GIA) :

2007
—BEtLHF
HK$’000
B FT

23,058,332
64,197
352
28,566
74,135
5,019
16,259
2,425

60,131

3,710

719,730
6,309
44,136
107,882

878,057

28,230
4,667

64,610

4,142

6,749

(27,682)
(109,481)

2006
—ETRF

=

HK$'000
BT

18,105,956
56,950

162

12,894
28,257
7,255
19,781

45,060
3,150

522,576
12,863
31,961
72,933

640,333

(22,992)

6,828

38,664

2,313

(1,246)
(64,796)
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The impairment of goodwill, the impairment of intangible assets, the impairment of
available-for-sale investments, the provisions/(reversal of provisions) and write-off of
obsolete inventories, the write-off of other receivables and the impairment and write-
off of doubtful trade receivables are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on
the face of the consolidated income statement.

The amortisation of intangible assets is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

e At 31 March 2007, the Group had no material forfeited contributions available to
reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2006: Nil).

Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEKFE
Interest on discounted bills BAREEF B
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AERE BTEERNE AIHHE2RERNE REFE
B (BBRE) Ry BRI B E 5
IRRRIRRERMHE A GE R ERT 2 [HEEE
FRFEE] Ae

BRVEEBHEH AR RERPZ [HERE]A-
N-BRLF=A=+—H AEELE|ES KA HIRAR
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Group

rEH
2007 2006
—ZEtHF ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFT BT
100,819 62,312
45,587 33,539
146,406 95,851
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Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing — RIEBFBHMA X ZHERARIZS LR (TR &
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ~ &AQREGIE161{EEEZAFEESME0T:
“Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is

as follows:
Group
KEE
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Fees vk 508 450
Other emoluments: Hib e :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe EAREYMEF 10,493 9,087
Performance related bonuses ERRIAHN 2 TEAT 9,166 8,200
Employee share option benefits (note) e BERRERA (Afa) 1,424 2,744
Pension scheme contributions RIREBFFEIER 57 48
21,140 20,979
21,648 21,429

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as ~ ANEE R B FBIIEHITES 2 BEEI0 T
follows:

2007 2006

“BELF —ERREF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis 2R EE 63 150
Professor Wu Jinglian R R 150 150
Mr. Hu Zhao Guang SRR E 150 150
Mr. Wong Man Chung, Francis EXCREAE 91 -
Mr. Kwan Ming Heung, Peter Kwan Ming Heung, Peterst 4 54 -
508 450

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive — ANEERAEE RN E S N F B IFRITE ST A EMEE
directors during the year (2006: Nil). (ZZTRFE)-
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2007 —BEBLF

Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Li Qin FEELE
Mr. Guo Wei BT E
Mr. Zeng Maochao BIXESEE
Mr. Lin Yang WEEE
Mr. Hua Zhinian EUFEE

Non-executive director: EHITES:

Mr. William O. Grabe

William O. Grabe%t &

2006 —EERF

Executive directors: WITESE:
Mr. Li Qin FEELE
Mr. Guo Wei BRFE
Mr. Zeng Maochao Bk E
Mr. Lin Yang WS EA
Mr. Hua Zhinian ENF R AE

Non-executive director: EITES:

Mr. William O. Grabe

William O. Grabet 4

Fees

ik
HK$°000
YT

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind
e

p=1-11

REY

&R
HK$’000
BT

2,992
3,873

697
1,890
1,041

10,493

10,493

2,775
3,638
817
1,783
974

9,987

9,987

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year.

Note:

No share options were granted to the directors during the year in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option schemes of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 34 to the financial statements. The employee
share option benefits represent the fair value at the grant date of the share options in
previous years amortised to the income statement during the year, disregarding if

there is a grant of share options during the year.
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Performance

related
bonuses

BERRHA

ZIEAL
HK$°000
YT

2,870
4,319
300
1,555
122

9,166

9,166

2,870
3,000
300
1,627
403

8,200

8,200

Employee
share option
benefits

B8

|-

=
HK$’000
BT
(Note) (KtzE)

360
560

280
224

1,424

1,424

670
1,091

546
437

2,744

2,744

Pension
scheme
contributions

Btk
Ly
3%

HK$’000
BEFT

19

19
19

57

16

16
16

48

Total
remuneration

e
e
HK$’000
BYFT

6,222
8,771

997
3,744
1,406

21,140

21,140

6,315
7,745
1,117
3,972
1,830

20,979

20,979

BEEVENANFENTLRRERBREERNME 2 25

Hifet -

REERN REEFRAAKERHRGMNERX A QRS
PRBERH BT T 2 BERR R — P RE B R L B T IR M RE
34 - EREREEFIREAEFEBRENRHE ANA
FERENANFREORERNEE TnERBRESTR
AEERERT-



The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2006: four)
directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of
the remuneration of the remaining two (2006: one) non-director, highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind o R REMER
Performance related bonuses EAFR IR 2 TEAT
Employee share option benefits (note) 1 B BEARERN (f5T)
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:
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AEEZREHFAUEEBE=S (ZTZTRE:NR) ES:
BEZMEFBEHER EXMFION BT R (ZTFRF:—
R)FEZZREHRERAFEZMEFH B MM T:

Group

rEH
2007 2006
—2EtHF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
1,740 279
2,530 336
242 1,128
38 16
4,550 1,759

HeNFUTHBEZZSHFESEIEARNT:

Number of employees

EEAH
2007 2006
—EZTLEF —EERF
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 T 27 #2,000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 28 ®2,500,0007T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7 #2 500,001 7T 2 3,000,000 1 =
2 1

Note:  The employee share option benefits represent the fair value at the grant date of the
share options in previous years amortised to the income statement during the year,
disregarding if there is a grant of share options during the year.

Krat: EEBBRERMNRRATFEMRENBRENELE
BORFEE RNAFEARNKRERA#EE TREHE
BREEENAEFEAERE T
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Group: REE:
Current — Hong Kong KEE-FHE
Current - PRC REE—FEH
Deferred (note 25) RIE (FFE25)
Total tax charge for the year AEEHMBIHER

(@)

PRC corporate income tax represents tax charged on the estimated
assessable profits arising in the PRC. In general, the subsidiaries of
the Group are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate of 33%
except for certain subsidiaries which are entitled to tax holidays and
preferential tax rates.

During the year, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 17.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been made in the prior
year as the Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Group had no estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or had tax losses brought
forward from prior years to set off assessable profits for the year ended
31 March 20086.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the jointly-
controlled entities and associates as the jointly-controlled entities and
associates had no estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
for the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2007. PRC corporate income
tax has been provided at the rate of 33% on the estimated assessable
profits of the jointly-controlled entities and associates for the years
ended 31 March 2006 and 2007. The share of tax credit attributable
to the jointly-controlled entities of approximately HK$32,000 (2006:
Nil) and the share of tax credit attributable to the associates of
approximately HK$317,000 (2006: share of tax charge of approximately
HK$377,000) are included in “Share of profits and losses of jointly-
controlled entities” and “Share of profits and losses of associates”
respectively on the face of the consolidated income statement.
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2007 2005
—RBLF  —EEAAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BTz EHT
1,447 B
82,119 23,757
7,065 (2,787)
40,631 20970

BTSRRI R B A 2 (AR T RERRBOR F P
Wz BIE-BRE T B R RZEA R RREERIN
ARG E 2 B AR —RBBMT R R33%. PREILE
St

RERAN BENGRIREREEL G ERTG
FHZ17.6% 2 B RFE - ARAKE 2 BENB AR
EEFEYEEEBELMGIERTOEN %8
BEFEARENEE_TTREF=A=+—HAIF
ERERBUEN 2 HIEE R AL ER T B MG
.

HREBHREFICERBEARREE_ST F
k=TT LF=A=1+—RIFEHEEEBELR
FTIERRBUR FI - 2 DA 4 o T [R122 1 10 2 R B 5 /12 A)
HREBNEBEL B E R BA S IRIBES
BT RER_ETHF=A=+—HIFERT
B Ak ) 2 ) 1 B R Bk A m) 2 (b BT PR RR B O IR
33% T R B - FRAG HERIEHI 3 2 BIER 2540
PEH32,0007T (Z2TAFE) R E AR 2 A
TR AE#E317,0007T (Z BT NF FIESZ LB
377,0007T) B A RIET ARER A e R 2 [FEIEH
IR il 1 3 2 b ) R 518 I [ FEAR B 2 A 8] 2 b A
REEIR-



On 16 March 2007, the National Peoples’ Congress approved the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), which
will become effective on 1 January 2008. The New CIT Law introduces a wide
range of changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification of the
income tax rate for domestic-invested and foreign-invested enterprises at 25%.
At the date of approval of these financial statements, detailed implementation
and administrative requirements relating to the New CIT Law have yet to be
announced. These detailed requirements include regulations concerning the
computation of taxable income, as well as specific preferential tax treatments
and their transitional provisions. The Group will further evaluate the impact of
the New CIT Law on its operating results and financial positions of future periods
as more detailed requirements are issued.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to the profit before tax using the
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company, and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and
a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective
tax rates, are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

R-ZZLE=AT AMARNETEZEARKRAES
TREHB T (PEARKXMBEREMETOE) ([FREME
BORD) AR BT NE—H— BT HEERETOA
SIAT —RZINRCBIBETRINKE A SNE DEEHEL
—7325% © BEMMBHmER ZER EEREIEREN
BEHEAMNE AN RIRE R A L ARRR E BRI A Z
FHE KB RIS ER IR R E AR R I S 2 A - B E S
AFE B RIR AR B BRI M3 R EAETUES AR IR
BEXBENMGE

RIBARE] KRB BB R R FTE ADARE R 2R E B R AT
HRBANE N Z B H - BR B R G 2 BUR S H R
A REmAB R (BUATER ) BERHRE RN :

2007 2006
—EELE —EETRF
(Restated)
(=270))
HK$°000 % HK$'000 %
BT Bk BEF T Bt

Profit before tax BRTLADAE T 241,944 269,581
Tax at applicable tax rate REAMRETE 2B 79,841 33.0 88,962 33.0
Lower tax rate for specific BEA MM

provinces or local authority & BEEIEF = (140,435) (58.1) (80,503) (29.9)
Profits and losses attributable F£[RI3EHI 2 K

to jointly-controlled AN ey

entities and associates Y ) K 518 9,660 4.0 3,153 1.2
Tax effect of unused tax RERZABA

losses not recognised HIBEEB 2 RIGTE 14,768 6.1 9,373 3.5
Income not subject to tax EIB R Z WA (5,815) (2.4) (690) (0.2)
Expenses not deductible LIk a5

for tax 90,431 37.4 13,529 5.0
Profit not subject to tax EIERIR 2 m A (7,249) (3.0) (10,549) 8.9
Tax losses utilised from FRBEHE

previous periods HIBEE (570) 0.2) (2,305) (0.9)
Tax charge at the Group’s BAEBERRETE 2

effective rate HEZ 40,631 16.8 20,970 7.8
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IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for
the year ended 31 March 2007 includes a profit of HK$88,323,000 (2006:
HK$91,840,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 35(b)).

Proposed final dividend — 8.28 HK cents
(2006: 10.00 HK cents) per ordinary share (=

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of approximately
HK$208,429,000 (2006: HK$251,917,000), and the weighted average of
871,479,182 (2006: 862,916,065) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of approximately
HK$208,429,000 (2006: HK$251,917,000) and 876,317,035 (2006:
866,515,404) ordinary shares, which was the weighted average of 871,479,182
(2006: 862,916,065) ordinary shares in issue during the year, and the weighted
average of 4,837,853 (2006: 3,599,339) ordinary shares deemed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all the outstanding share
options during the year.
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TE=ZA=1T - ALFERALRRRAMBHRERZ
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HE2-ZZ
ISYNG|
4 ##091,840,0007T) (FHEE35(0)) °

FEIR R BAP% B — T A% E B A8 287811l
TTNE10.00710)

2007 2006
—EBELF —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT BT T
72,370 86,693

FAFIRRIEE
g bRt

AR R BRRAEEE BIT 2 BRBF KR

ERGREFTIRAFE 2 A 7 AR R &5 5 4078
#208,429,0007T (ZZZ/~4F : E%251,917,0007T) " LA KRR
REERNZ BEITEBRZ INETH2871,479,1820%k (==
TN 1862,916,0650%) it & -

BWERER &ﬂmﬂkiﬁz A iR AR AR R FE A5 4V
##208,429,0007T (=F i 75#251,917,0007T)
876,317,035/ LHX( T TN :866,515,4040%) &t
R ﬁtﬂx1ﬁ§ﬂzaﬂ%ﬂ$¢rﬁqz BEITLARZ MET
871,479,182 (ZZTZ/ 4 :862,916,0650%) * A&
BERANEERNZ A MARITEZ BIRER R AT
RADEEETEER 2 INET 84,837,853 (ZZEZ X
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Group

31 March 2007

At 31 March 2006
and 1 April 2006:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 20086, net of
accumulated depreciation
Additions
Disposals
Disposal of non-current assets
classified as held for sale
Transfers from construction
in progress

Transfer to investment properties

(note 16)
Depreciation provided

during the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2007, net of

accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2007:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

—BEtF=H=+—H

RIFTRF
=RA=+—H

E-FEAFMA—A:

A
REtiE

IREFE

RN-ZTREFNA—AR-
kR Rt E

NE

HE

HERBHEZ
FERBEE

HERERETE

HEEREAME

(Ktzx16)
REEFE

A
[it47E

RIEDFHE

Leasehold
land and
buildings
HELH

REF
HK$°000
BETT

258,162
(12,266)

245,896

245,896

(753)

(85,631)

(16,754)

(5,061)
7,545

145,242

151,007
(5,855)

145,242

Leasehold
improvements
HE

#1g
HK$’000
BETFTT

64,741
(26,348)

38,393

38,393
6,965

(3,293)

10,630

(12,129)
1,084

41,650

66,403
(24,753)

41,650
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AEE

Office
equipment
WAE
RiE
HK$°000
BETT

294,167
(164,529)

129,638
129,638
56,913
(3,646)
(2,417)

4,592

(44,805)
4,212

144,487

330,386
(185,899)

144,487

Motor
vehicles

A=
HK$°000
BT T

24,927
(18,812)

6,115

6,115
2,269
(183)

(2,202)
185

6,184

26,370
(20,186)

6,184

31 March 2007

—EEH+F=HA=+—H

Construction
in progress
TR

IR
HK$°000
EBETT

126

126

126
14,964

(15,222)

190

58

58

58

Total
et

HK$°000
BYF T

642,123
(221,955)

420,168
420,168
81,111

(4,582)

(91,341)

(16,754)

(64,197)
13,216

337,621

574,314
(236,693)

337,621
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IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Group
Leasehold
land and Leasehold
buildings  improvements
FAE L Gizh=y
REF =i
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T B For
31 March 2006 —EEXRE=A=+—H
At 1 April 2005: R-ZEZRFMA—R:
Cost FRANE 159,462 42,865
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (9,168) (24,081)
Net carrying amount MREFE 150,294 18,784
At 1 April 2005, net of RZZETRFMNA—A-
accumulated depreciation MR 2T E 150,294 18,784
Additions B = 1,467
Acquisition of a subsidiary g —EHE AR
(note 36(a)) (Ff$7£36(a)) 17,251 =
Disposals HeE - 6)
Disposal of non-current assets HERBHE
classified as held for sale ZIEREEE (65,213) -
Transfers from construction EERETRTRE
in progress 143,612 25,924
Transfer to investment properties ~ ERERE Y%
(note 16) (HMtzE16) - -
Transfer to prepaid land premiums EREEFa N +3FH S
(note 17) (MtsE17) - -
Depreciation provided REEHFE
during the year (8,376) (8,092)
Exchange realignment STk 3,328 316
At 31 March 2006, net of RIZTTRF
accumulated depreciation =A=+—8"
MR REHTE 245,896 38,393
At 31 March 2006: RIZBERF
=A=+—H
Cost KAE 258,162 64,741
Accumulated depreciation REti e (12,266) (26,348)
Net carrying amount IR EFE 245,896 38,393

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings included above are held under
medium term leases in Mainland China.

During the year, one of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings and prepaid
land premiums situated in Mainland China with an aggregate net carrying
amount of approximately HK$91,341,000, was transferred to non-current asset
classified as held for sale and then disposed of resulting in a net gain on
disposal of approximately HK$21,500,000 (note 5).
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£330
Office Motor  Construction
equipment vehicles in progress Total
WA= iz
B B I #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BT EETT BT EETT

259,505 24,577 172,423 658,832
(129,282) (17,016) - (179,547)
130,223 7,561 172,423 479,285
130,223 7,561 172,423 479,285
31,971 916 192,906 227,260
1,649 76 = 18,976
(2,344) (204) - (2,554)

= = = (65,213)

8,874 - (178,410) -

- - (176,925) (176,925)

= = (13,890) (13,890)
(43,116) (2,366) = (56,950)
2,381 132 4,022 10,179
129,638 6,115 126 420,168
294,167 24,927 126 642,123
(164,529) (18,812) = (221,955)
129,638 6,115 126 420,168

BN B2 AR BEMEE 3 RE TR BARE SAFRHTE
FOES R

AANEE A AN E B E A — B R R B AR IR EFEBEEL
7E¥591,341,0007T 2 HE + i REF A RFERT L ihiH & - S
ERAREZIERDEE BHEKZ HE WEALE TR
#7E#21,500,0007T (MI7ES5) °



At the balance sheet date, certificates of ownership with respect to certain of
the Group’s leasehold land and buildings situated in Mainland China with an
aggregate net carrying amount of approximately HK$140,432,000 (2006:
HK$226,529,000) had not been issued by the relevant government authorities.
The Group has obtained the relevant certificates subsequent to the balance
sheet date.

At 31 March 20086, the Group’s buildings situated in Mainland China with a net
carrying amount of approximately HK$16,725,000 were pledged to secure
certain bank and other loans granted to the Group (note 32).

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

REEBBREE D ARBNKEARRRAER S TR+
B K B IR T F{EAARBX) A5 15140,432,0007T (Z 2T /N F:
7E#5226,529,0007T) 2 FAE i RIEFE LA EE -AEE
EREEABREE AEIVSIEREER-

R-BEANF=A=+—8 AEEETARFEAERDF
E475%16,725,000 L 2 EFE FUAKIF (EARNEBESE
FRITREMERZ FER (H7E32) ©

Company
Leasehold
improvements
HEH£E
HK$°000
BETT
31 March 2007 —EEtHE=A=+—H
At 31 March 2006 and RZZEZRF=A=+—H
1 April 2006: ;=TT RFNA—H
Cost BANME 2,831
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (2,344)
Net carrying amount R L FE 487
At 1 April 20086, net of RZZETRFMNA—H-
accumulated depreciation MR 2T E 487
Additions NE 16
Disposals HE =
Depreciation provided REEHE
during the year (352)
At 31 March 2007, net of RZEZLF=A=+—H
accumulated depreciation MR EFHTE 151
At 31 March 2007: RZEZLHE=A=+—8H:
Cost BANME 2,847
Accumulated depreciation REtinE (2,696)
Net carrying amount R L FE 151

PN
Office Motor

equipment vehicles Total
WAERE RE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EEFr EEFT EBETT
1,606 985 5,422
(1,170) (788) (4,302)

436 197 1,120

436 197 1,120

88 - 104

(1) = 1)

(195) (197) (744)

328 - 479

1,666 985 5,498
(1,338) (985) (5,019)

328 - 479

HINBEEER AR AR
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31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Company

31 March 2006

At 1 April 2005:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2005, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation provided
during the year

At 31 March 2006, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2006:
Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

—EEXRF=ZA=+—H

R-EZRFMNA—H:
RAE
2:rE

MR E

RZZEZTRFMNA—H-
MR RITE

NE

HE

REEHE

R=FFAF=A=t+—8
i REHAE
R=FEAF=A=+—8:
RAE

LT

MR E
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Leasehold
improvements
HEEE
HK$°000
BT T

2,831
(1,769)

1,062

1,062

(575)

487

2,831

(2,344)

487

Office
equipment
I YNE ]
HK$’000
BT

1,699
(1,025)

674

436

1,606
(1,170)

436

Motor
vehicles
B
HK$’000
BT

985
(591)

394

394

(197)

197

985

(788)

197

Total
et
HK$’000
BT

5,615
(3,385)

2,130

1,120

5,422
(4,302)

1,120



ROA—BZiREE
BREEETRE (H:15)

Carrying amount at 1 April
Transfer from construction in progress (note 15)

Transfer from leasehold land and buildings (note 15) & # 5 + i RAEF (FiFE15)

B EERRZF N
BE 3 AR

Net profit from a fair value adjustment
Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—HAZIREE

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China and are
held under medium term leases.

At the balance sheet date, the certificates of ownership with respect to certain
of the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$191,996,000 (2006: HK$184,293,000) have not been
issued by the relevant government authorities. The Group has obtained the
relevant certificates subsequent to the balance sheet date.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 March 2007 by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers,
at approximately HK$208,226,000 on an open market, existing use basis.
The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 38(a) to the financial
statements.

At 31 March 2007, one of the Group’s investment properties situated in
Mainland China with a value of approximately HK$16,231,000 (2006: Nil) was
pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 32).

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

Group

rEE
2007 2006
—EZTtF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BT
184,293 -
- 176,925
16,754 -
1,456 7,368
5,723 -
208,226 184,293

REE 2 AR BRI AR B KA -

REEABREED ARBUNHKERAR AN EEREEERE
#9575%191,996,000 7T (ZZZ /N4 : 51 184,293,0007T)
ZREMERLEARE AEEEREESBERAZERER
1S BRI

RIZZLF=ZA=+—R AEERENERBUEXSE
RIGER RS T E EFEERERARRAFEMSERATH
WIS [HX9E%208,226,0007T L FRE W ERBAL L
WHBETHE=77 - FFHERBENM SRR EI8(@)

R-ZZRLF=ZA=+—RB AEEECNHEAEEEE

#)75%16,231,0007T (ZZZTNF E) 2 IEMED F K
o EAREERSE TRITER ZER (H7E32)
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IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are as follows: AEEREYE 2 E—SFBEHIWOT:

Attributable
Location Use Tenure interest of the Group

b B Rz F1 REBELER

Digital Technology Plaza, Office building Medium term lease 100%
No.9 Shangdijiu Street, HWAKIE FRHAFRAY

Haidian District,

Beijing City,

The PRC

P EIERTERE

I EREROATOSR

BRI ES

No.6 Zhongguancun, Office building Medium term lease 100%
Nandai Street, WAKE HRERFE 4D

Haidian District,

Beijing City,

The PRC

HEERTERE

B B R BT65%
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Carrying amount at 1 April

Transfer from construction in progress (note 15)
Disposal of non-current assets classified

as held for sale

Amortisation recognised during the year

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 March

Current portion included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Non-current portion

The Group’s leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is situated

in Mainland China.

ROA—BZiREE
BREEETRE (H:15)
HERARFEZIFRBEE

RNEETER < B
BEE S SR

A=+— EZEE@
%ﬁ@%&ﬁﬁ
Ko L Ath e W SR IR

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

Group

FEE
2007 2006
—EBtHF ZEERE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BT
13,832 15,944
= 13,890
= (15,840)
(352) (162)
424 -
13,904 13,832
(357) (347)
13,547 13,485

REE 2 FHE ISR BRI AR B ARE -
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IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset in the consolidated balance

sheet, arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries, is as follows:

At 1 April:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount

Cost at 1 April, net of accumulated impairment
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36(a))
Impairment during the year

Exchange realignment

Net carrying amount at 31 March

At 31 March:
Cost
Accumulated impairment

Net carrying amount
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RUBHBRAREEMRGEAEERBRANERMEREEZ

Group
rEH

EESEMT:
2007
e A
HK$°000
BEF T
RIOA—A:

R ANE 45,671
REHRE (17,406)
MR EFE 28,265
R A—BZKANME Ik REHRE 28,265
U 3% — M B A 7] (i 3E36(a)) -
AEFRE (28,566)
P W A 301
R=A=1+—RBZIRE%E -

R=RA=+—8:
B ANE 46,158
2EHRE (46,158)
VR A -

2006
ZETRF
HK$’000
BT T

17,244

(4,512)

12,732

12,732
28,265
(12,894)
162

28,265

45,671
(17,406)

28,265



Goodwill acquired through the business combination has been allocated to
the telecommunications sector software development cash-generating units,
which is under the Services segment, for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the telecommunications sector software
development cash-generating unit is determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period approved by senior management. The discount rate applied
to cash flow projections is 6%.

During the year, due to the continuous losses incurred by the subsidiary
principally engaged in telecommunications sector software development, the
directors, by discounting the future cash flow generated from the subsidiary
at the discount rate applied to cash flow projections of 6%, considered the
goodwill of approximately HK$28,566,000 was fully impaired.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
telecommunications sector software development cash-generating units. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has based
its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned to
the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the
year immediately before the budgeted year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the cash generating units.

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

BREBAHRBZRBE N EEMTERMGHERSEL
B b BRI AE - LOETTRUE IR -

BATEEMRERSELBM 2 AIREEDREBEEREE
B mEREEDRARESRER BIE 2 AFHMNEE
HEAZ RS REAE -FHURSREMER Z AR ER6% °

RAFEEN HRENREEMTESRFRE 2B R RSE
BEEE EERRESRERE 2 IRR6%TEZHB AR
EEZARKBRERER RAEHE28,566,000THEEE 2
HURm (A

AHERTERMRARRSESEN 2 EREERBELE
2HRR TXERERERETHERENABRR S RER
KB BERERMBR:

HEEFF -REEN R BECEEREREEREFERN
—(AFEEPREUS 2 FHERNE Wt TR R R IERT IS
BRIEL EFR-

MEE-FRAZBRATABRRAMRE ARRERRSE
LB R 2 R
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IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Group

31 March 2007

Cost at 1 April 2006, net of accumulated
amortisation and impairment

Amortisation provided during the year

Impairment during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2007

At 31 March 2007:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment

Net carrying amount

31 March 2006

Cost at 1 April 2005, net of accumulated
amortisation and impairment

Additions

Disposals

Amortisation provided during the year

Impairment during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2006

At 31 March and 1 April 2006:
Cost
Accumulated amortisation and

impairment

Net carrying amount

—EELF=H=+-—H

R-ZETRFOA—BZKAE

R R 518 35 KR E
ZNGHES: 3
AEFRIE
P AR

R=FFLF=A=+—7
R-EBLF=A=+—A:
RAE

REHBH R
IREH(E

—EEAF=A=+-8

R-ZZERFMA—RHZKARE"

R R AT 8 35 KR E
NE

HE

REE
REERIE

AR

Rt ORE

IREFE
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AEE

Licences

R
HK$’000
B FT

17,940
(17,940)

Deferred
development
costs

BT

BB B
HK$°000
BT T

39,324
(5,019)

(16,259)
1,041

19,087

80,072

(60,985)

19,087

32,828
32,820

(7,255)
(19,781)
712

39,324

77,616

(38,292)

39,324

Total
Bt

HK$°000
BETFT

39,324
(5,019)

(16,259)
1,041

19,087

80,072

(60,985)

19,087

32,828
50,760
(17,940)
(7,255)
(19,781)
712

39,324

77,616

(38,292)

39,324



During the year, in view of the change in market demand, the directors
considered the carrying values of certain deferred development costs are
irrecoverable after taking into consideration the estimated future revenue.
Impairment losses of approximately HK$16,259,000 (2006: HK$19,781,000)

are recognised accordingly.

Unlisted shares, at cost
Capital contribution in respect of employee
share-based compensation

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name and operations
=% HMARZ
ZRREEHE

Digital China (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands

REAARES

Alternate Agents Limited British Virgin Islands/
Mainland China
REBERARES

/B RRE

FE LMD - BB
NEMNXEEZMEEALE

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered
capital
ERITREE
RAZHEE

/ BHEmRER

Ordinary shares
US$5,125
AR

5,125 7T

Ordinary share
US$1

gl

157

Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007

—EEH+F=HA=+—H

MAFERERN AR5 ERE NE EHLE B R
ik BREEW OIS TIRTEFE KA ZIREE - F It R

75#16,259,0007T (Z T/ F B9,

18e

781,0007T) 2 B IEE

Company
PN

2007 2006
b S —ETREF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETFT BT T
699,407 699,407
49,759 44,295
749,166 743,702

TEMBARFENT:

oip

]

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
PN
EihERE A
HiE i3

100 =

= 100

MBS AR A

Principal activities
FEEHR

Investment holding
REZER

Provision of
supporting services

IR IR R

Al F¥k 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Name

=t

Digital China Limited
1M EES B R A A

Digital China (China) Limited**
1R s (P E) AR AR

Chengdu Digital China Limited**
FRER RN IS AR A A

Shenyang Digital China Limited**
SEISN B AR AR

Shanghai Digital China Limited**
EEINEEER AR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
ML
BREREEME

Hong Kong
N

Mainland China
LlETpN

Mainland China
LlETpN

Mainland China
LlEpN

Mainland China
LlEpN

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered
capital
ERTRER
RA&z2HEE

S ESBEmER

Ordinary shares
HK$2

B

ok P

Registered capital
HK$1,000,000,000
A E A
#5#1,000,000,0007T

Registered capital
HK$5,000,000
A E A

75 #5,000,0007T

Registered capital
HK$5,000,000
A E A

75 #5,000,0007TC

Registered capital
HK$10,000,000
A E A
#5#10,000,0007T

TEMBRRFENT: (8)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
P N
EihERE A
HiE i3

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal activities
FEEHR

Investment holding

BERER

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
REEK R D HITEm

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
AR KD HITEm

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
REEK R D HITEm

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
RETEK KD HITEm



Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Name

=t

Digital China (Shenzhen) Limited**
1 s ORI AR AR

Xian Digital China Limited**
LN EE AR AR

Wuhan Digital China Limited**
RZSMNEBIBEER AR

Nanjing Digital China Limited**
R AN BB AR A R

Guangzhou Digital China Limited+~
BN SIS ER AR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
ML
BREREEME

Mainland China
LlETpN

Mainland China
L=y

Mainland China
L=y

Mainland China
L=y

Mainland China
L=y

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered
capital
ERTRER
RA&z2HEHE

/ BHEmRER

Registered capital
HK$12,000,000
EERIIE-ZN
#5#12,000,0007T

Registered capital
HK$5,000,000
EERIIE-ZN
715,000,000

Registered capital
HK$5,000,000
EERIIE-ZN
715,000,000

Registered capital
HK$3,000,000
ERIIE-ZN
753,000,000

Registered capital
HK$12,000,000
ERIIE-ZN
#5#12,000,0007T

Notes to Financial Statements

TEMBRRFENT: (8)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
P N
EihERE A
HiE i3

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

Principal activities
FEEHR

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
REEK R D HITEm

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
REEK KD HITEm

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
REEK KD HITEm

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
REEK R D HITEm

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
REER KD HITEm

MMNBESERAR AR F3 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Name

=t

Jinan Digital China Limited**
Er NS AR AR

Digital China Marketing
& Services Ltd.

Digital China Technology Limited
WMNEBR R ERERAE

Digital China Advanced
Systems Limited

MBI EKZRER AT

Digital China (HK) Limited
NGRS (B BRQA)

E-Olympic International Limited

Digital China Networks, Ltd.
MBS R AR AR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
ML
BREREEME

Mainland China
LlETpN

British Virgin Islands
REBERRES

Hong Kong/
Mainland China
B8/
H B KR

Hong Kong/
Mainland China
B8/
H B KR

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
REABRRES

British Virgin Islands
REBERRHES

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered
capital
ERTRER
RAZHEHE

S ESBEmER

Registered capital
HK$2,000,000
A E A
712,000,000

Ordinary share
US$1
il

17T

Ordinary shares
HK$1,000,000
AR
7#1,000,0007T

Ordinary shares
HK$50,000,000
AR
7#50,000,0007T

Ordinary shares
HK$10,000
il
75%10,0007T

Ordinary share
US$H1

AR

12E7T

Ordinary shares
US$10,000,000

B
10,000,0003 7T

TEMBRRFENT: (8)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
b N
EihERE A
HiE i3

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 100

= 991

Principal activities
FEEHR

Systems integration
and distribution of
IT products

A EN R D HITE @

Investment holding

REERK

Distribution of
[T products
SEYITE S

Systems integration
and distribution of
IT products

A EN R D HITE @

Distribution of
IT products
DEEITES

Holding trademarks

AR

Investment holding

BERER



Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Name

=t

Digital China Networks
(HK) Limited
INBES A (B8) ARAR]

Digital China (Shanghai)
Networks Limited*#

HMNEES (L) B ER AR

Grace Glory Enterprises Limited

Digital China Software (BVI) Limited
fe MBS (BVI) BIR AR

Digital China Sinoray
Technology Limited*-
N BES T RE R R B R AR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
ML
BREREEME

Hong Kong/
Mainland China
a5/
AR B R RE

Mainland China
L=y

British Virgin Islands
REBERRHES

British Virgin Islands
REBHERRHES

Mainland China
L=y

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered
capital
ERITRER
RAZHEHE

/ BHEmRER

Ordinary shares
HK$2

B
ok

Registered capital
HK$3,000,000
EERIIE-ZN
753,000,000

Ordinary share
US$1

A
12E7T

Ordinary share
US$1

A
12E7T

Registered capital
US$5,000,000
ERIIE-ZN
5,000,000% 7T

Notes to Financial Statements

TEMBRRFENT: (8)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
b N
EihERE A
HiE i3

= 991

= 991

= 100

= 100

= 100

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

Principal activities
FEEHR

Distribution of
networking products

Development
and distribution of
networking products

IR HBEER

Investment holding

BERER

Investment holding

BERER

Consultancy, design,

development, integration,

application and
maintenance of
electronic financial
systems

ERMEFELRENZEA

REH BB SRAC
ERERE

MMNBESERAR AR F3 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Name

=t

Beijing Digital China Limited*
AR MNEEEER AR

Beijing Digital China SicTech
Co., Ltd.*
eSS REE SR AR AT

Beijing Instant Technology
Logistics Co., Ltd.*
ERBEYRBIXBR AR

Digital China (Zhengzhou) Limited*
FPINERES (FBM) BRADA]

Talent Gain Developments Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
EMRL
BEREELR

Mainland China
AP B AR

Mainland China
Ll

Mainland China
Ll N

Mainland China
LN

British Virgin Islands
REABRRES

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered
capital
ERTRAR
RA 2 EE

S ESEmER

Registered capital
RMB1,500,000,000
M E A

AR #1,500,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB20,965,000
M E A

AR ¥20,965,0007T

Registered capital
RMB10,000,000
M E A

AR #10,000,0007T

Registered capital
RMB5,100,000
M E A
AR¥5,100,0007T

Ordinary share
US$H1

AR

12E7T

TEMBRRFENT: (8)

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

Indirect
¥ N
EiEESEE AL
HiZ [SiE:2

Direct

= 100

= 100

= 100

Principal activities

FTEXEHK

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
RETEK R D HITE®

Application software
development, systems
integration and IT
consultancy services
FERR4FE - ZRER -
ITR& A ARTS

Provision of
logistic services

TR RS

Systems integration
and distribution of

IT products
RETEK R D HITE®

Investment holding

BB



Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Name

=t

DGT Information Systems Limited
(“DGT")

N BES B AR ER AR
(Me M e mme])

DGT Information Systems
(Shanghai) Limited**

NI E ARt (L) BRAR

DGT Information Systems
(Beijing) Limited**

TN EES B A (L) AR AR

Power Gateway Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
ML
BREREEME

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China
L=y

Mainland China
L=y

British Virgin Islands
REBERRHES

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered
capital
ERITRER
RAZHEHE

/ BHEmRER

Ordinary shares
US$3,000,000
Preference shares
US$1,000,000
A
3,000,000 7T
B
1,000,0003 7T

Registered capital
US$1,500,000
EERIIE-ZN
1,500,0003 7T

Registered capital
US$1,100,000
ERIIE-ZN
1,100,0003 7T

Ordinary shares
US$100

A
1003 7T

Notes to Financial Statements

TEMBRRFENT: (8)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
b N
EihERE A
HiE i3

= 55

= 55

= 55

= 100

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007

—EEH+F=HA=+—H

Principal activities
FEEHR

Investment holding

BERER

Software development

and maintenance
services

IR RRE RS

Software development

and maintenance
services

IR RRE RS

Investment holding

BERER

MMNBESERAR AR F3 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

Name

=t

Beijing Si-Tech Information

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
ML
BREREEME

Mainland China

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered
capital
ERTRER
RAZHEHE

S ESBEmER

Registered capital

TEMBRRFENT: (8)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
b N
EihERE A
HiE i3

= 81.18

Principal activities
FEEHR

Research and
development,
application and
maintenance of
software products

BHERMERME:
LA R SR 1 R R AR 2 AR

FZERRZREXEBEREAMBEL 2P XL

RIFFEDAREMKILARIN AR

Technology Co., Ltd. (“STQ”)* AR B A e RMBA43,715,000
I RBREFE SRS M E A
BRAF (TBHF]) AR¥43,715,0007T
+ The English names of these companies are direct transliterations of their Chinese
registered names.
# Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

~ Registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under PRC law.

A The Chinese names are the trade names but not the official names of these
companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

~ REBHEEEEMALBPIEE R
2 FZERRZHXBEINE S ER WL EA R

EERRERABZARFMBRRBEAEBRFE 2 KA
BERYEMMEAKEEEFELEAT N -EFRARMIIL
HibfE AR ER S EREBNIIKe



The amounts due from/(to) the subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-bearing
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these amounts
due from/(to) the subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

Share of net assets E(EEEFE

The Group’s trade receivable balance due from a jointly-controlled entity is
disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

B (FEAT) Bt /B8 A R FRIR TH A BB e S B i B R HR o
ZERM (B MBRRFIRE REEEE AT EERE-

Group

£33
2007 2006
—BELEF —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT BEFT
3,644 24,526

7R [ P U — ) FE R PR 161 10 3 2 JE W B 5 R S A R i R A B
HIREMI 28

TEARERIREZFFENT:

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
registration attributable to
Name and operations the Group Principal activities
=t Rl A AEE N FEEK
BREREEMR EEREZAME
Digital China System Access Hong Kong 55 Investment holding
Holding Limited B AR
e B BI85 15 AR A IR B
Beijing Digital China System Mainland China 55 Provision of core
Access Software Limited* AP B K e banking systems
RN S R S T B IR A A R OIRTT
o The English name of this company is a direct transliteration of its Chinese registered ~ + ZERNRZ AN AR hEEFEFEMER 2P BT

name.

The Group’s shareholdings in the jointly-controlled entities are held through
the subsidiaries of the Company.

AEBRAREHERZBETERAARZHMER
AFR-

MMNBESERAR AR F3 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

The above table lists the jointly-controlled entities of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
jointly-controlled entities would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Both of the above jointly-controlled entities have been accounted for using
the equity method in these financial statements.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the
Group’s jointly-controlled entities:

Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ FEMR 2 EIEHIDE
assets and liabilities: BENAE:
Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Current liabilities MEAE
Net assets BEFE

Share of the jointly-controlled FEMLEEIEFIDEEE:
entities’ results:

Total revenues U A
Total expenses 4R
Loss &8

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

EER/LmE s ARBEARENCEHAEEARAFEZ
EEABAFEYAAEBEEFEZERMN - EERHMN
S E A K RZEHI DR ER S ERRBN TR

AR R RS B iR R AN A SRR IR

TRIAAEEARES X2 MEERBE:

2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EBMEFT BT T
5,617 9,066
1,397 15,662
(3,370) (202)
3,644 24,526
8,304 530
(29,186) (5,701)
(20,882) (5,171)



Share of net assets

The Group’s trade receivable and payable balances due from/(to) the associates

EIEEEFE

are disclosed in notes 28 and 31 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2007, the amounts due from the associates included in the
Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables was approximately
HK$7,523,000 (2006: HK$8,551,000).

The amounts due from the associates are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these amounts due

from the associates approximate to their fair values.

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Name

=L

Digital China Management
Systems (BVI) Limited

Digital China Management
Systems Limited”

MBI EIERRAR AT

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
ML
BREREEME

British Virgin Islands
REBERAES

Mainland China
A K B

TR
A=/NC]|

Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007

—EEH+F=HA=+—H

Group

rEE
2007 2006
—EZTtF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BT
22,970 36,453

TEBERAZFFIT:

Percentage

of ownership
interest
attributable

to the Group
AEE N
BERZANET

REBREY () ZHBENR 2 BRE SRR RENE
SR AER BN MK E28 %310

R-ZET+F=A=+—8 ERHEQRBREEENRE:
e R EMERGIE £ BB RET7,523,0007T (Z TN F:
7 18,551,0007T) °

FRIRTH RN S 8 I J [B] E BE B - R i 2
RARAEZREAEEE N HEERSE-

Principal activities

FEEK

40 Investment holding
REEERR

40 Provision of enterprise resources

planning software and related services

RECEERAGYM A ERE

MBS AR A

Al F¥k 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: (cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

TEBEARZFEMNT: ()

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable

Name and operations to the Group Principal activities
=L MR REBAEL FTEXK
BREREEME BEEREZBML

Beijing Digital China Management Mainland China 40 Provision of enterprise resources
Systems Limited” A B K planning software and related services
RSN EBEREZRERAA RECEERFRERM R B RS
Guangzhou Digital China Mainland China 40 Provision of enterprise resources
Management Systems Limited” A K B planning software and related services
BN ER R ER AR REGEERFRM B BRSS
Nanjing Mercuries DC Financial Mainland China 30 Development and sale of automatic
Systems Ltd. (“Nanjing Mercuries”) * SIEipN173 teller machines and related
ARAMNETE=EEE RS financial services
FEERAR (A=) B BhiE B K & RiAE
Emz FERHE

+ The English names of these companies are direct transliterations of their Chinese ~ + ZERNRIZ AN EBIEEEFMEL 2P BB

registered names.

During the year, the Group’s directors have decided to dispose of Nanjing
Mercuries and transferred it to non-current asset classified as held for sale.
Further details of this asset are included in note 30 to the financial statements.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held through the subsidiaries
of the Company.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All the above associates have been accounted for using the equity method in
these financial statements.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

AERER ARBERTEHERR A RBARNEREZHE
MEBEE -BRINEE 2 E— SHBERAMERKRMFE0NHK

o

K

i)

REERR 2 BAETVEBARR ZMBARRE -
EERR LR AKEBERRHAEEAFREAE
BAFESEAKREEEFEZ BN EERRMIILE
it AR AR BEREER TR

P LB A R B IR AR AR TS 3R D0k



The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the
Group’s associates extracted from their financial statements:

Assets BE
Liabilities 8E
Revenues LN
Loss &8

FLETRBRE LKA
B ARE R E

Unlisted equity investments, at cost
Less: impairment during the year

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities which were
designated as available-for-sale financial assets and have no fixed maturity
date or coupon rate.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments are measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Their fair values cannot be measured reliably because the
probabilities of various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair values.

Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007

—EEH+F=HA=+—H

TRIRAEEB 2 AR ZHBERBE (ke LM HH

=)

2007
—BEtLHF
HK$’000
BEFT

161,850
(42,654)
270,345
(14,475)

Group
rEE

2007
—BEtH
HK$’000
BT

34,036
(2,425)

31,611

2006
ZETRF

=

HK$'000
BETT

167,020
(68,154)

243,231
(11,177)

2006

ZETRF

HK$'000
BETIT

32,944

32,944

PR E BEREEFRE RERETEEATTHEESR

AE BYEETEIHHARERNK-

AREEZ I EiiE s BRI R R ER Rk A
MBEANSRGF 2B ERERSEFEAAGERFER

IR AR SERTE AN PEE

MMNBESERAR AR F3 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as

follows:

Group

At 1 April 2006

Deferred tax credited/
(charged) to the income
statement during the year

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2007

Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profit

] AR 88

KRIRRERB

Az B e

HK$’000

BT T
RZZEZTRFMNA—H 10,523
FREWERTF

A (F0BR)

ZIRERTE 10,590
PE 3 S 452
R

=H=t—Hz

EEFIIRE E AR 21,565

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

FEERBEER BEFAZEHMT:

AEH
2007
—EELHF
Asset

provisions Others
EEREB Hit
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
15,270 15,914
(5,565) (5,666)
350 394
10,055 10,642

Total

st
HK$’000
BETT

41,707

(641)
1,196

42,262



Group

At 1 April 2006

Deferred tax charged
to the income statement
during the year
Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax liabilities
at 31 March 2007

Net deferred tax charged
to the income statement
during the year (note 11)

Net deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2007

R-ZZBZEXRFMA—H

FARERERT
FEAZBEIERIR

FRERZRPIRZ
IR B R A
(BFEE11)

Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007

—EEH+F=HA=+—H

rEE
2007
—EELF
Unrealised losses
from intragroup Revaluation
transactions of properties Others
SERXS
BEEZX
BHEE MEE Hith
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T B F T BT T
5,411 1,105 4,041
4,479 297 1,648
56 34 153
9,946 1,436 5,842

HINBEEER AR AR

Total

At
HK$°000
BEFT

10,557

6,424
243

17,224

7,065

25,038

3} 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR BT AL

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

Group

At 1 April 2005

Deferred tax credited/(charged)
to the income statement
during the year

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2006

RZZEZTRFMWA—H

FARERERT
A (HOER)
ZIRFERIR

PEE 3L FR 2K

R-BENRE

—A=+—8z
RIER IR E B

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profit

A AR
ARIRPERTR
iy Pl St
HK$°000
BT T

11,031

(739)
231

10,523

FEE

2006
“FEAF

Asset
provisions

BERA
HK$'000
BETIT

15,314

(395)
351

15,270

Others

Hitp
HK$000
BETT

2,198

13,644
72

15,914

Total

st
HK$°000
BRTIT

28,543

12,510
654

41,707



Group

At 1 April 2005

Deferred tax charged
to the income statement
during the year
Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax liabilities
at 31 March 2006

Net deferred tax credited
to the income statement
during the year (note 11)

Net deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2006

Unrealised losses
from intragroup

transactions
EEAR S
EEZR
BEREE
HK$’000
BT T
R-ZETRFMNA—H -
FRERZRT
A ZIRIERIR
5,411
P& H R -
R-TTRE
=A=+—Hx
RIETIR A EARE 5,411
FERERHERFEHAZ
IR IR F R
(PsE11)
RZZEERF=ZA=1+—H
IR E IR R

Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007

—EEH+F=HA=+—H

rEH
2006
ZERRF
Revaluation

of properties Others
MEER E At
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT T
- 797
1,105 3,207
- 37
1,105 4,041

HINBEEER AR AR

Total

st
HK$'000
JBRTIT

797

9,723
37

10,657

2,787

31,150

3} 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$170,521,000 (2006: HK$93,921,000) which are due to expire within five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the subsidiaries in which
the losses arose. These tax losses and certain deductible temporary differences
of approximately HK$46,790,000 (2006: HK$28,958,000) have not been
recognised as deferred tax assets since they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have incurred losses for some time.

At 31 March 2007, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability
(2006: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain
of the Group’s subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities or associates as the Group

has no liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends
by the Company to its shareholders.

Trading stock BH5FE

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

ARERE PR g B RE 2 BRIBE 1B 408 #5170,5621,0007T (=&
TN 7#593,921,0007T) + A FARIK SHE A B 18 2 M A 7]
ZARRERBORF SR BEFNER AR EHIEEERE
TR E B IE Z 2848 %46,790,0007T (Z T TR G
7E#£28,958,0007T) T3 2R B E £ 1B —BRISHE 2 B R F - i
WAHERABELERIBEE-

R-ZZ2LF=A=1—H BETAEEMBRF] LFEZES
EFHERRZAREL AT BRZEFREL - AREY
ERDRERIIGUR REBAR L EARERRERRA R
(Z2TRFE) -

AABRABRINZBE T EMAEHRIER-

Group

rEE
2007 2006
ZBELF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEFT BT T
1,683,630 1,567,027



Gross amount due from contract customers
included in other receivables

Gross amount due to contract customers
included in other payables

Contract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses to date
Less: Progress billings

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except for
new customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The credit

Bt AEMRYFIRZ
eI A KB P 2 IR
EFFAEMBENFIRZ
ENBHEP 2 RIBAER

BEABREEHNELEZELHKE
AT WERR R AR B HE RS 1R

B HE SR ER

period is generally for a period of 30 days to 180 days. The Group seeks to

maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly

by management. In view of the aforementioned, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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Group

TEH
2007 2006
—EBtHF ZEERE
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T BT
32,313 31,772
(14,391) (14,204)
17,922 17,568
264,027 312,683
(246,105) (295,115)
17,922 17,568
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An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the balance sheet
date and net of impairment is as follows:

Within 30 days 30K

31 to 60 days 31RE60K
61 to 90 days 61 RZE90K
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K
Over 180 days HiB180K

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables approximate to their
fair values.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are amounts due from the
associates of the Company’s controlling shareholder of approximately
HK$543,000 (2006: HK$520,000).

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are amounts due from the
related companies of a subsidiary of the Group, namely DGT, a jointly-controlled
entity of the Group and the associates of the Group of approximately
HK$5,040,000 (2006: HK$7,293,000), Nil (2006: HK$246,000) and
HK$200,000 (2006: HK$617,000), respectively.

The above balances are repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to
the major customers of the Group.
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Group

rEE
2007 2006
ZBELF —ERREF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEFT BT T
1,445,863 1,444,990
327,043 339,584
277,791 250,167
447,396 324,812
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2,852,404 2,584,673

FEWE ZiRA R R IE 2 IR EEE AP EEEE-

AEEREKRESRRARERZESBEOIERBE AR RE
AR AR BR 2 Bt 48 A B FRIA A #5543,0007T (Z BT /NG B
520,0007T) °

RNEE 2 ERE SRR R EREIRS 8B IEEIR A SR 2 M
BAE NI RARG  ZRAEEA R — ARG ®
¥R ZHEEE AR 2 FIEDRIKAEES,040,0007T (ZF TR
B 7,293,0007T) £ (Z T T /NF B 246,0007T) KB
¥200,0007T (ZZZ /14 7#5%617,0007T) °

EREESRTIRIBRH T ARB IR RS 2 RUERIETEE-



2007

—geLr

HK$°000

BB

Re RE(THE

Cash and bank balances 717,455

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$652,150,000 (2006:
HK$231,907,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate to
their fair values.

During the year, the Group has entered into a share transfer agreement with a
third party to dispose of its entire interest in an associate, Nanjing Mercuries
DC Financial Systems Ltd. The disposal has not yet been completed as at 31
March 2007 and the directors anticipate that the disposal will be completed
by the end of July 2007.

Group
rEE
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Company
¥ N
2006 2007 2006
—ETREF —ETtHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT BT T B FT
297,768 913 26,606
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An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance sheet date
is as follows:

Within 30 days 30K

31 to 60 days 31RE60K
61 to 90 days 61 RXRZE90K
Over 90 days BBI0K

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are generally settled for a
period of 30 days to 180 days.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables are amounts due to the
associates of the Company’s controlling shareholder and an associate of the
Group of approximately HK$112,398,000 (2006: Nil) and HK$4,039,000 (2006:
HK$2,011,000), respectively.

The above balances are repayable on similar credit terms to those obtained
from the major suppliers of the Group.
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Group

Current

Bank loans, unsecured
Bank loans, secured
Other loan, secured

Non-current
Bank loans, unsecured

Analysed into:

FEE

B

RITE R M
RITER BHEM
HpEH AEA

FREB
RITE N KR
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Bank loans repayable:

Within one year or on demand

In the second year

In the third to fifth years, inclusive
Beyond five years

Other borrowing repayable:

Within one year or on demand

2007
—EELF
Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000
TR
(B0tE) Ep-CRE] BT T
4.37-6.08 2007 599,887
5.85-6.12 2007-2008 33,649
633,536
6.39 2008-2012 603,697
1,237,233
DATEAT :
FEEBIRITER:
—FASIRBEE
RE=—FR

FE-FEZERF (BEEEMRST)
AFE

HAbEEEE R
—FARZIRBAN

31 March 2007

—EEH+F=HA=+—H

2006
—ETRF

Effective
interest
rate (%)

B =

Maturity

(BfLL) PGl

4.72-7.81
5.58
5.60

2006
2006
2007

Group
rEE

2007
—BEtH
HK$’000
BT

633,536
247,417
148,450
207,830

1,237,233

1,237,233

HK$'000

BT

1,182,189
4,799
19,197

1,206,185

1,206,185

2006
—BEAF

— ==

HK$'000
BETIT

1,186,988

1,186,988

19,197

1,206,185
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Notes:

The Company guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans of approximately
HK$1,164,684,000 (2006: HK$1,173,550,000) at the balance sheet date.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans of approximately HK$33,649,000 (2006: bank
loan of approximately HK$4,799,000 and other loan of approximately HK$19,197,000)
extended by financial institutions to a subsidiary of the Group, STQ, were secured
by a property situated in Mainland China with a value of approximately HK$16,231,000
(2006: HK$16,725,000) and 14,061,976 issued shares of STQ in favour of Beijing
Zhongguancun Sci-Tech Guaranty Co. Ltd. (the “Pledgee”), an independent third
party, for securing a guarantee issued by such Pledgee on behalf of STQ at the
balance sheet date.

Except for bank borrowings of approximately HK$599,887,000 (2006:
HK$981,578,000) which are denominated in United States dollars (‘US$”), all bank
and other borrowings are denominated in RMB.

Other interest rate information:

Bank
Bank

Other loan — secured

Fixed rate
EEF =
HK$’000
EBETT

IRITE R — I 603,697
RITER— KT 33,649
HEMER— A =

loans — unsecured
loans — secured

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate to their fair values
which are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows at prevailing
interest rates.
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Authorised:
2,000,000,000 (2006: 2,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Issued and fully paid:
874,039,081 (2006: 866,934,081)
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 6,573,000 (2006:
5,677,750) and 532,000 (2006: Nil) share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$1.976 per share and HK$2.75 per share, respectively
(note 34), resulting in the issue of 7,105,000 (2006: 5,677,750) ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
approximately HK$14,451,000 (2006: HK$11,218,000).

Notes to Financial Statements
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2007 2006
—2EtHF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
200,000 200,000
87,404 86,693

ANEEN6,573,00010 (ZFL/54F:5,677,75013) K%532,000
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The old share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 14 May 2001
(the “2001 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the board of directors of
the Company may, at its discretion, grant options to full-time employees
(including executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (the
“Employee(s)”) to subscribe for shares of the Company. The purpose of the
2001 Share Option Scheme is to provide the Employees with an opportunity
to obtain equity interests in the Company and to reward them for contributing
to the long term success of the Group.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme had not exceeded
10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
maximum entitiement of any Employee thereunder had not exceeded 25% of
the aggregate number of shares subject to the 2001 Share Option Scheme. A
consideration of HK$1.00 was received on acceptance of each grant. A detailed
summary of the 2001 Share Option Scheme had been disclosed in the 2001/02
annual report of the Company.

Due to the amendment of the requirements for share option schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, some of the provisions of the 2001 Share
Option Scheme are no longer applicable.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 July 2002, the
shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) (details of which are set out below)
and the termination of the operation of the 2001 Share Option Scheme. Despite
the fact that no further options shall be granted under the 2001 Share Option
Scheme, the provisions of the 2001 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects to govern all outstanding options granted
prior to termination.
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The following table shows the movements in the share options under the 2001
Share Option Scheme during the year and the options outstanding at the

beginning and end of the year:

Number of share options

BRERE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Grantee 01/04/2006 during the year during the year  during the year 31/03/2007
R-ZBERF R-ZZ2LF
mA—R REE FEE #EE  =A=+-A
AERA 1 RATHE AR AT AKX ) RATHE
(note i) (Bt &Eiii)
Directors
=
GUO Wei 2,800,000 = = = 2,800,000
Eys) 2,800,000 = = = 2,800,000
LIN Yang 1,500,000 = = = 1,500,000
15 1,500,000 = = = 1,500,000
HUA Zhinian 1,100,000 = = = 1,100,000
ENEF 1,100,000 = (600,000) = 500,000
Other employees 25,117,000 - - (2,842,000) 22,275,000
Hitng s 10,620,500 = (5,973,000) (48,000) 4,599,500
In aggregate 46,537,500 = (6,573,000) (2,890,000) 37,074,500
&t
Notes: B3 :
(i) All options granted are subject to a vesting period of four years with 25% becoming (i)

exercisable on the first anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary, 25% on the
third anniversary and 25% on the fourth anniversary of the respective dates of grant.

(ii) The subscription price of the options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(iif) The weighted average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately
preceding and at the dates of the exercise of options were approximately HK$2.93 (ii)
per share and HK$2.90 per share, respectively.
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Subscription
price per share

sk

REBE

(HK$) (&¥7T)
(note ii) (B &ii)

3.180
1.976

3.180
1.976

3.180
1.976

3.604
1.976

Date of grant

BHAM

12/07/2001
31/08/2001

12/07/2001
31/08/2001

12/07/2001
31/08/2001

08/06/2001
31/08/2001

IS ERARMIEE

31 March 2007
—EEH+F=HA=+—H

TRESIE=TE —CRRE B TRRENATERNZE
B AR R4 R AR AT 2 BRI

Exercisable period

168

(note i) (P} &Ei)

12/07/2002-11/07/2009
31/08/2002-30/08/2009

12/07/2002-11/07/2009
31/08/2002-30/08/2009

12/07/2002-11/07/2009
31/08/2002-30/08/2009

08/06/2002-19/06/2009
31/08/2002-30/08/2009

B RH BRI R SR AHNFNBRES Kh25%
AR SR B BRERHR —IBF 2 B FRTTE  25% AT HOW
MIAF 2 BRI 26% AT M =B+ 2 BRHKRTITE
K 25% R M B A 2 A RtaTTiE.

BRENRBENARRERIRBEARIERAHE
H A SR\ B R TR

AR R BEAEREITE R AT B 2 T
BT ED B ASRE#2.93T K E#2.907T
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(iv) No options were cancelled under the 2001 Share Option Scheme during the year.

(V) At the balance sheet date, the Company had 37,074,500 share options outstanding
under the 2001 Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 37,074,500 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of approximately HK$3,707,400 and share premium of approximately
HK$112,317,000 (before issue expenses).

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was adopted on 18 July 2002 and its principal
terms are as follows:

(a) Purpose

The 2002 Share Option Scheme seeks to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions or potential contributions made or to be made by the qualified
persons (as defined below) to the Group, to motivate the qualified persons to
optimise their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and to
maintain or attract business relationship with the qualified persons whose
contributions are or may be beneficial to the growth of the Group.

(b) Qualified persons

Any part-time or full-time employee or officer or director (including executive,
non-executive or independent non-executive) of any member of the Group or
of any associated company, or any supplier, agent, customer, joint venture
partner, strategic alliance partner, distributor, professional adviser of, or
consultant or contractor to, any member of the Group, or the trustee of any
trust pre-approved by the board of directors of the Company, the beneficiary
(or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary objects) of which include
any of the above-mentioned persons.

(c) Maximum number of shares

At 31 March 2007, the maximum number of shares available for issue under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme was 86,303,308, which represents
approximately 9.9% of share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
these financial statements.
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(d) Maximum entitlement of each qualified person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each qualified person (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company then in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting of the Company.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company or any of their respective associates must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company (excluding the
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of such options).

Any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any of their respective associates must,
in addition to obtaining the approval of the independent non-executive directors
of the Company, be approved by the shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting if such proposed grant of share options, when aggregated with all
options (whether exercised, cancelled or outstanding) already granted to such
substantial shareholder or independent non-executive director during the 12-
month period up to and including the date of such grant of options, would (i)
entitle that relevant person to receive more than 0.1% of the total issued share
capital of the Company for the time being; and (ii) represent an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 based on the closing price of the shares of
the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) at the date of such grant.

(e) Timing for exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall be the period set out in the
relevant offer letter provided that such period must expire on the date falling
on the tenth anniversary of the offer date.

() Acceptance of offers

An offer of the grant of an option shall be accepted by the grantee on or
before the last date for acceptance of such offer as set out in the offer letter,
which must not be more than 28 business days from the relevant offer date. A
consideration of HK$1.00 shall be received by the Company on acceptance
of each offer.
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(9) Basis for determination of the subscription price

The subscription price shall be the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares
on the offer date; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value
of a share.

(h) Life of the 2002 Share Option Scheme

The 2002 Share Option Scheme shall remain valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing from 18 July 2002, the date on which such scheme is
deemed to take effect in accordance with its terms.

The following table shows the movements in the share options under the 2002
Share Option Scheme during the year and the options outstanding at the
beginning and end of the year:

Number of share options

@) BIEEBZ EERE

RBERR TP ZE&SE: @BRHNELH BB ZKTE: (b)
BRINRERED B AN A EE XA 2 FHRTE: LM
ZMEfEe

(h) BT _FRREA ) FHE
“ETERREAEN —TT_FLA+\R (B EIREE
BHRRE /AR A) Btz HFHRNGRERREER-

TREJE_ZT_FHEEASTRERENAFEANZE
B RN E R F R RITE 2 A

fElREEE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at Subscription
Grantee 01/04/2006 during the year during the year  during the year 31/03/2007 price per share Date of grant Exercisable period
R-ZBERF R-ZZ2LF
mA—H rEE AEE AEE =HA=+—8 ESTd
ARA 8 RATHE AR AT AES: S ) RATHE RBE REAM 1T
(HK$) (&¥7T)
(note iii) (B &iii) (note ii) (Ffd i) (note i) (BT &Ei)
Directors
=
LI Qin 2,500,000 = = = 2,500,000 2.068 24/06/2004 24/06/2005-23/06/2012
)
GUO Wei 5,000,000 = = = 5,000,000 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
BE
LIN Yang 2,500,000 = = = 2,500,000 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
iz
HUA Zhinian 2,000,000 = = = 2,000,000 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
FEANF
Other employees 45,998,000 = (532,000) (2,593,000) 42,873,000 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
Hitifgg
In aggregate 57,998,000 = (532,000) (2,593,000) 54,873,000

2t
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Notes:

(i) All options granted are subject to a vesting period of four years with 25% becoming
exercisable on the first anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary, 25% on the
third anniversary and 25% on the fourth anniversary of the respective date of grant.

(ii) The subscription price of the options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(iif) The weighted average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately
preceding and at the dates of the exercise of options were approximately HK$3.49
per share and HK$3.44 per share.

(iv) No options were cancelled under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year.

(v) At the balance sheet date, the Company had 54,873,000 share options outstanding
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these outstanding
share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 54,873,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of approximately HK$5,487,300 and share premium of approximately
HK$143,708,000 (before issue expenses).

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
general meetings.

The fair values of equity-settled share options granted were estimated as at
the respective dates of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%)

Expected volatility (%)
Historical volatility (%) 48 per annum
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.53 and 4.11 per annum
Expected life of option (year) 8
Weighted average share price (HK$) 2.72

2.75 per annum
45 per annum

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past
three years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.
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=

U) FrE R 2 BRI Z RN AHNFRNBES Hh25%
AR SR A B R —BF 2 AFARTTE  256% AT 5%
A F 2 HFITTEE 26% AT M =A% 2 BRHKITE:
R26% AT mIRF 2 B RATTE.

(i BN RBERAR AR IRBEARIERAE
H At SRS B A TR o

(ii) AR PN REBEAEREITE R RIT6E A ZINET
BT ED BN RSB ES.49T KB #S3.447T°

() RAEE R ER S T = EMAE AT
o

) REESBREER ARRR ST _FRREEIT
i#7854,873,00017 BE IR IER I TERIBA AR ZIREE
ARG 2EITEZ S AR T 2 B S R REINEAT
54,873,000/ A" B) 2 E AR - W REHNE £ IR AN KA1
5,487,3007T K A 1935 (B 4978 143,708,0007T (KRFHE
IRX) -

BREY B THAAZAREINBIRAE LRRAORER -
FRbEsEERERE . A FHEEDNERNREERRA =

S (A 8P 2 4 RO 2 B R - TR
SRR 2 BUR AR

i% 8 & FE2.75E
TEER IR FE45E
BIEKIE FE48E
4 B I 2 BF3.53ER4E
B AR 2 TR AT AR 8%
AR E 2,727

BRE 2 AT F N IRIBAE = F ZBEERFE RO R
AT BEHIR 2 T RIE N - TR IR AR X IR A T IR B R AR /)
FERARRES  WIRRITA LG EER & RAT
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The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 64 of the financial statements.

Reserve funds

Reserve funds are reserves set aside in accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China. These
reserve funds can be used to offset accumulated losses but not be distributable
in the form of cash dividends.

Share

premium

account

B 13

S EIR

Note HK$’000

Kt BT

At 1 April 2005 R-ZEREMA—A 294,683

Exercise of share options 1T R AR AE 10,651
Equity-settled share option AR 152

arrangements HE AR 2o HE -

Profit for the year NEE T =

Proposed final 2006 dividend BER-ZZSTNEREKRE 13 -

At 31 March 2006 R-ZEERF=A=+—8H 305,334

Exercise of share options 1TE AR AE 14,238
Equity-settled share option AR 242

arrangements HE R HE =

Profit for the year ANF T =

Proposed final 2007 dividend BE—ZSSLFREBRE 13 -

At 31 March 2007 R-BZB+tE=A=+-—8 319,572

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the fair
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a corporate
reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda
(as amended) and the Bye-Laws of the Company, the contributed surplus can
be distributed to the shareholders, provided that the Company will be able to
pay its liabilities as they fall due and subsequent to the distribution, the
aggregate amount of its total liabilities as well as the issued share capital and
premium is less than the realisable value of its assets.
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FEERAFEERAEEEZHERERESHSEZ7IN L
MIERRFARZFAREEIHRA-

REES RAEENHEIAREZ B A AR EA AR
HZ B ZEREBES T RAKHERAER BTRAES
BBZIA DK

Employee
share-based
Contributed compensation Retained

surplus reserve profits Total

BRA A

EE2 RE

BABER MEmEE el HEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT
623,689 37,595 152,394 1,108,361
- - - 10,651
- 12,863 - 12,863
- - 91,840 91,840
- - (86,693) (86,693)
623,689 50,458 157,541 1,137,022
_ (498) - 13,740
- 6,309 - 6,309
- - 88,323 88,323
- - (72,370) (72,370)
623,689 56,269 173,494 1,173,024

KRB ZHABRBIERBEBEERRRRMEBRZPIER L
mmETZ AR EAMEBERBARZROEAFEE
BRARBHEARBMBEITIBNEAEL SR REBFER
AVE (RIER]) RARBZ ARAA A BB DK TR
EARRAMAFRE BRI Z B MAEZEDKE RNA
A2 BERARERITRARRENEREEENATRRE.
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The employee share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of UM HEE S FEEREE T HMATHEOBREZ A
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in WETE%EX'Ei’\*%iﬁ’\%ﬁ?ﬁ%?ﬁi%ﬁ#%2 AT E R RIER) Z AT
the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in note 2.4 to the SETBRARRE RREIRE TR  ZREETRESEEA
financial statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share premium szlimﬁf%f IR SE BB ARE S Bk W 1% AR B
account when the related options are exercised, or be transferred to retained

profits should the related options expire or be forfeited.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary acquired ~ RUKEERH FTkE— B AR 2 A HAIEERBEZ AT

as at the date of acquisition were as follows: BEHIIET:
2007 2006
—EELE ZETREF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Hiat BEFT BT
Fair value recognised on acquisition: AWEEERER 2 A TEE:
Property, plant and equipment ER YN 15 - 18,976
Interests in associates NN oy - 1,183
Available-for-sale investments AREEZIRE - 2,399
Trade receivables FEUTE BRI - 12,862
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE /IR R & R E A FEKGRIA - 41,564
Cash and bank balances & RRTTHE - 15,518
Trade payables JERTE BRI - (11,678)
Other payables and accruals HithENRIBRBIRER - (16,742
Tax payable FESFIIR - (204)
Short term bank borrowings HRSRITE K - (8,639)
Long term other borrowings REEMER - (19,197)
Minority interests DB - (10,438)
- 25,604
Goodwill on acquisition W E 2 B 18 - 28,265
- 53,869
Satisfied by: XA
Cash Re - 53,869

MMNBESERAR AR F3 06/07



Notes to Financial Statements

IS ERARMIRE

31 March 2007
B+ F=HA=1+—H

The carrying amounts of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
immediately before the acquisition approximate to their respective fair values
as stated above.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

BENRE
Weis 2 RE MIRTT 4 #

Cash paid
Cash and bank balances acquired

W — Rt &
ReEEMRHFR

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary

In November 2005, the Group acquired a 71.04% equity interest in STQ at a
consideration of approximately HK$53,869,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash, with approximately HK$49,221,000 paid
and the remaining unpaid balance of approximately HK$4,648,000 was
included in other payables at 31 March 2006. The Group further injected cash
of approximately HK$40.8 million into STQ subsequent to its acquisition,
whereby the Group’s equity interest in STQ was increased to 81.18% after
such capital injection.

Since its acquisition, STQ contributed approximately HK$27,411,000 to the
Group’s revenue and reduced the consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent for the year ended 31 March 2006 by approximately
HK$34,000. There would be no material changes in the Group’s consolidated
revenue and consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for
the year ended 31 March 2006 should the above acquisition has been taken
place on 1 April 2005.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the non-cash capital contribution made
by the Group into a jointly-controlled entity was in the form of an intangible
asset valued at approximately HK$21.4 million.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

ZRWREERA-HAMNBARZHIEERBEZIREE
HENFEERE

HUE-HNBRRMEE RS KRS FEYREIFED
ranT:

BIIEEZRER

2007 2006
—EELF —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT BT T
- (49,221)

- 15,518

- (83,703)

R-ETRF+— A REEURELHE53,869,0007T K iE
BREE Z271.04% R AR

RBE-ZTEAF=A=+—RALFE KESHEBEAE
#)#E¥49,221,000 L AR & R AT RITBAREL B
4,648,000t =ZZT R "F=A=+—Het AHMEFFKIE-
RUEE SRR  ANEB B R BT F AR £4948%40,800,000
TEBBRAEER BT ZRAERIENEST.18% °

Eu&%%ﬁuma‘%@_zz/ﬁ A=t—BLFE 2

TRAEEERZGEBA RO Tﬁxiﬂﬁimm
ﬂ A Rl A7 #527,411,0007T R #34,0007T o R 3% |-t U g
FER_ZTRFNA—BET AEEREBEZ ST F
ZA=+-RUEFEZEABARD R R R R EGERE =T
HTreEERNES-

BHE_TEXRF=ZA=1T—HILFE FEEUEBLOEE
21,400,000 B A EME B RIEHI DR FFBREEAARL



At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

2007
—EELF
HK$°000
BT T
Guarantees given BB AT
for banking facilities BERZRITEE
utilised by subsidiaries R R =
Guarantees given to suppliers At B2 B4t
for subsidiaries TR RER 2 R -

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to the financial statements)
under operating lease arrangements, with lease negotiated for terms ranging
from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenant to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2007, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables
under a non-cancellable operating leases with its tenant falling due as follows:
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REEBEBEREE R IARRMBHRRBEHBZHIARENT:

Group Company
EE AT

2006 2007 2006
—ETRF —EELF ZEBTRF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BMTF T BT T
- 2,225,645 2,389,977
— 419,088 143,637
- 2,644,733 2,633,614
REERBLEEELTHEBEREYE B ERKME16) -

FBEEEAOMEARY —FE=FTF - BOKFTBESER
HPEZMNRES YIRS REERTRAEHAREES.

RZZETLF=A=+—H REFEEREBAFLEIZT
AIEH 2 A SRR 7N 52 B 2 HR I IR 2 R R AR AR E AN R AN
T~

Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT IT
Within one year —FR 21,030 15,987
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEERF (BEEREME) 3,289 14,742
24,319 30,729
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The Group leases certain of its office properties and warehouses under AEEREBEEEHELHAEEETHAEMERER FF
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms  ZEEMERNOBE AT ELE+F-
ranging from six months to ten years.

At 31 March 2007, the Group and the Company had total future minimum  RZ=ZZTZtF=F=+—0 REFTTAIHEE 2 CEHL-
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:  A&EB kAR B FHES N 2 KR FEREMR RO T

Group Company
rEH AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ZELHF —ETREF —EELF —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT T BT
Within one year —FNR 40,238 50,628 1,712 1,711
In the second to fifth F_FEERF
years, inclusive (BEEREMSE) 47,035 44,281 1,141 2,853
After five years RFi% 8,595 10,511 = =
95,868 105,420 2,853 4,564

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 38(b) above, &t XHFE38(bL)FFMlMEEFHER IV REEAEBERA A
the Group and the Company had the following capital commitments at the — S£ERAR BEL T & AN Eq# o
balance sheet date:

Group Company
rEE ¥ NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEAF ZEERF —EEtHF ZEERF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT BEFT BT
Contracted, but not provided for: & 5T #J{B R4
Capital contributions in: EEATARIHE:
Associates /N 990 = - =
Jointly-controlled entities H A 5,130 = = =

6,120 = = =
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In addition to those transactions and balances presented elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year:

Lenovo Group Limited and its subsidiaries,
the associates of the Company’s
controlling shareholder:

Sale of goods by the Group
Purchases of goods by the Group

Right Lane Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company’s controlling shareholder:
Rental expenses paid by the Group

GE Capital Mauritius Equity Investment,
a shareholder of DGT,
and its subsidiaries:
Provision of IT services by the Group

TIS Inc., a shareholder of DGT,
and its subsidiaries:
Provision of IT services by the Group

Digital China Management Systems (BVI) Limited
and its subsidiaries,
associates of the Group:
Sale of goods and provision of IT services
by the Group
Purchases of goods by the Group and
provision of IT services to the Group

Nanjing Mercuries DC Financial Systems Ltd.,
an associate of the Group:
Purchases of goods by the Group
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B BBIRERE MDA 25 22 ERX P RGN REBRA
FEANTEAZBHEALRS:

Notes

et

ARFHERBER 2 B AT

B

HEREBERAR

MEMB AR

AEEHEZEY
AEEBEZEY

(i)
(i)

AREERER22EEE

ME AR BRERAR:
rEEXNZHEE

A B 3 P BN 2 AR

(i)

GE Capital Mauritius Equity
Investment & E @A A :

e RS 37 PR {2 AR ER
TIS Inc. R HB AR

REEBEHITARS

AEERHITARSS

(iv)

(iv)

N[ 2 B4 2 7] Digital China

Management Systems

(BVI) Limited & ELFff B 2 7] :

AEBEHEEZEMR

RUEITARTS

rEEBEZEMR
[F) AN 5k B2 (I T AR 755

(i), (iv)

(i), (iv)

REE 2 BN T N B
SHERRGREERAR:

AEEBEZEY

(i)

Group
rEH

2007
—2EtHF
HK$’000
BETFT

44,822
1,142,083

360

10,723

33,438

595

3,627

17,012

2006

e

HK$000
BT

14,065
1,054,982

360

10,559

31,221

2,631

4,512

39,568
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Beijing Digital China System Access
Software Limited, a jointly-controlled
entity of the Group:

Sale of goods by the Group
Provision of IT services to the Group

Suzhou Digital China JieTong Technology
Co., Ltd., a jointly-controlled
entity of the Group:
Sale of goods by the Group

Notes
Mt
REE Z HFEEHIRE
Jb R N B B 64
BHBERAR:
REEHEZEY ()
A SR IR A TAR S (iv)
REE 2 HFEEHIRE
BRI B A
MERBERAT:
REEHEZEY ()

Notes: PR
(i) The sales were made with reference to the listed prices and conditions offered to the (i)
major customers of the Group. mi#EfTo
(i) The purchases were made at prices mutually agreed between the Group and the (i)
corresponding related parties with reference to the pricing policies of the Group.
(iii) The rental expenses were determined at rates mutually agreed between the Group (iii)
and the corresponding related party with reference to the prevailing market reference.
(iv) The prices for the provision of IT services were determined at rates mutually agreed (iv)

between the Group and the corresponding related parties.
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2007
—EEtHF
HK$°000
BEFT

4,740
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2006

ZEERF

HK$000
BT
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(@) Details of the Group’s trade balances with the associates of the
Company’s controlling shareholder, a jointly-controlled entity,
associates and related companies of a subsidiary as at the balance
sheet are included in notes 28 and 31 to the financial statements.

(b) At 31 March 2007, the amounts due from the associates of
the Company’s controlling shareholder included in the Group’s
prepayments, deposits and other receivables were approximately
HK$28,278,000 (2006: HK$26,265,000).

(c) Details of the Group’s amounts due from the associates as at the
balance sheet date are included in note 23 to the financial statements.

Short term employee benefits HHAE B R A

Post-employment benefits EIEERET

Share-based payments ERIRER S

Total compensation paid to SRR EREEAEZ
key management personnel HREN 4R T

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial
statements.
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VEERRRGEHE A NEBEEADRERBR 28
ERF) AREHOE BERRLMBEARZ BRE

Rl B DR FHBHIN A TS R 728 %31

Mg X
i

I
0

R-ZETLHE=A=+—0 BRADERERER
ZESE N R 2 FROABEE TR E 1R e REAm K
FIE & D RIKERE28,278,0007T (Z BT NE B
#26,265,0007T) ©

REERBRGEER ARERUEHE AR FIAZH
BRI IR MRS -

2007 2006
—BEtH ZETRE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT BETIT
22,171 20,481

96 82

1,815 3,508
24,082 24,071

BEHE=ME 2 — T BN A R M T -
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The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s capital expenditure
and operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are cash flow
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2007, approximately HK$599,887,000 (2006: HK$981,578,000)
of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at floating rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currency, where the revenue and interest-bearing borrowings are
predominately in RMB and US$.

Digital China Holdings Limited Annual Report 06/07

SEZIZSRTABEMERTEEMERERERAD
EEY - ZELRMTANTIZABRERAEREZERRASR
LEEBEES - AREEEREEMEREERBE PN
ERRPEREL ZRKRE SRFIRBREBEARENE S
RN N R R

AEESRTAMEL 2 T ZRABR AR SIMEN KRR INE
R EERR MRS EER - EESRE REETESRR
B2 B A BRI AT

REEF AR DIRFREBEREERAERRIBHFE
58 2 B A R o A B30 S 6T S R T A DA R
EAR-

R-ZEELE=F=+—R AEEZHEBEEROBEE
599,887,0007T (=T Z 7 4F 1 /5%981,578,0007T) Ty F B F
RitBe

FEEHBRZEERR -SRARMEEREEUARER
ETUHNER - B R EBIRN EE B BT G NI
EITZER



The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents and available-for-sale financial assets, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
there is no requirement for collateral.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
and other available sources of finances. In addition, banking facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

Certain comparative amounts have been restated to conform with the current
year’s presentation.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 12 July 2007.
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Five Year Financial Summary
T FISERE

31 March 2007
—ERLF=A=1—H

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority interests of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial information and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set
out below.

2007
—EELF
HK$’000
BEFT
REVENUE WA 25,418,398
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBL AT R R 241,944
Tax B (40,631)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE BRI 201,313
Attributable to: BN
Equity holders of the parent HARIRE 208,429
Minority interests DR R (7,116)
201,313
2007
“EELF
HK$’000
BT T
TOTAL ASSETS HWEE 6,885,060
TOTAL LIABILITIES Hmes (4,911,814)
MINORITY INTERESTS DB RER (11,893)
1,961,353
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Year ended 31 March

BE=A=+-—H
2006 2005
ZEETRE —ZERF
HK$'000 HK$°000

BETIT BETT

19,864,897 15,456,902
269,581 175,904
(20,970) 6,062
248,611 181,966
251,917 186,236
(3,306) (4,270)
248,611 181,966

As at 31 March

R=A=+—8H
2006 2005
—ETREF —ZTTREF
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT
5,827,364 4,887,373
(4,021,496)  (3,298,869)

(19,009) (9,972)

1,786,859 1,578,532

2004
—ZTTNF
HK$’000
BT T
14,277,308
10,575

2,441

13,016

20,404
(7,388)

13,016

2004
—TENEF
HK$’000
BT T
4,038,216
(2,662,576)

(10,459)

1,365,181

2003
—TT=F

HK$’000

BT T

12,610,753

185,772

(6,517)

179,255

179,043
212

179,255

2003
—EBE=

—= =

HK$°000
BETT

3,919,660

(2,519,581)

(7,091)

1,392,988



Company Information

NRIER

Mr. LI Qin (Chairman)

Mr. GUO Wei (Vice Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. ZENG Maochao
Mr. LIN Yang
Mr. HUA Zhinian

Mr. William O. GRABE

Mr. HU Zhao Guang

Professor WU Jinglian

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis
Mr. KWAN Ming Heung, Peter

Mr. WONG Chi Keung

Mr. WONG Chi Keung

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

Suite 2008, 20/F., Devon House, Taikoo Place, 979 King’s Road,

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

YL (Z5)
BR%E (HLERBHREFATE)
wR S
MBsE
UL

William O. GRABE 5t 4

HARB SR A
RANTE
EMREE
KWAN Ming Heung, Peterst 4

FE®REE

FE®REE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

BB RBEEBITI R
KEHEEANE20 #2008 &

EERTT (BE) BRAR
B LBEQRITERAT
BITERTT

MBS AR AR
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Company Information

NEEFR

As to Hong Kong law:
Norton Rose

As to Bermuda law:
Appleby

Ernst & Young (Certified Public Accountants)

Reid Management Limited
Argyle House

41A, Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

Abacus Share Registrars Limited

(to be renamed as Tricor Abacus Limited with effect from 1 August 2007)
26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

0861

www.digitalchina.com.hk
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EE:
HIERK

BRELE:
Appleby

LXERTENETSAT (AR S EAD)

Reid Management Limited
Argyle House

41A, Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HHBBHELERAF

(BR_ZZLFN\A-BEREWREEHRAHERAT)

EREHFE2RAER28H S EET L2612

0861

www.digitalchina.com.hk



	封面

	目錄
	公司簡介
	財務摘要
	大事回顧
	主席報告
	管理層研討與分析
	董事及高層管理人員
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合收益表
	綜合資產負債表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	資產負債表
	財務報表附註
	五年財務摘要
	公司資料

